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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed
on the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities trade on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Prosten Technology
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions
expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration
and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board ") of the Company, | am pleased to present the Annual Report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group ™) for the financial year ended 31 March 2009.

Steady Growth in a Difficult Environment

This year was the second consecutive year in which the Group has maintained its profitable position. Although under
the current negative macroeconomic climate, the Group still maintained steady growth in revenue and achieved
healthy results for the year under review. Wireless music search services continued to be the largest revenue
contributor to the Group. Up to the end of this financial year, a total of 170 million mobile users had used our music
search services. Our patented search engine technology not only enabled mobile users to have quick and convenient
access to the wireless music, but also allowed mobile data service and content providers to market their music
products more effectively in a new way. Despite the fierce competition in the overall market, we have strengthened
our market position in China by upholding our commitment to customer satisfaction and delivery of quality services.

Enhanced Efforts to Grasp Market Opportunities

There are enormous business opportunities in the PRC market, which has approximately 640 million mobile phone
users. The Group is exploring these opportunities by strengthening its efforts in research and development and
expanding our business network by cooperating with new telecom operators in major provinces in China. Meanwhile,
| believed the Group is well placed to co-operate with other telecom operators to capture more opportunities in the
telecom industry. | look forward to bringing higher returns to the shareholders by our continuous efforts in the years
to come.

Our diversification plan will be continued, with the support of business plans aiming for sustainable growth. Looking
ahead, we are confident of securing support from our partners, business associates and shareholders. Together with
our professional, committed and highly motivated staff, we will continue to explore new businesses and new markets
and strive to achieve fruitful results.

We would like to express our sincere gratitude to the support of all shareholders and business partners and also
thank and recognise the contribution of our hard-working employees and dedicated management team. Together,
we shall set new milestones and achieve better results in the coming years.

Yip Heon Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 June 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis EE E s R 2T

Operating Results

Results for the year

The Group achieved a growth in revenue during the year under
review and remained profitable for a second year. Profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted to
HK$15,636,000, as compared to HK$26,487,000 in the previous
financial year. Excluding the fair value gain on derivative component
of convertible bonds of HK$4,827,000, profit attributable to equity
holders was HK$10,809,000.

Revenue

Consolidated revenue for the year ended 31 March 2009
amounted to HK$109,477,000, representing a significant increase of
HK$26,138,000 or 31% over the previous financial year. During the
year, the Group strived to maximize its mobile search user base by
launching various marketing and promotional campaigns. With
support from business partners, it has made continual efforts to
improve its wireless music search services. As a result, both the
frequency of searching and the download rate per user improved.
The increase in revenue was encouraging as the Group proved the
wide acceptance and public awareness of its wireless music search
services, and the effectiveness of the business strategies by the
Group, despite the impacts of the Sichuan earthquake and the
Beijing 2008 Olympic Games, both of which led to temporary
suspension and cancellation of certain sales and marketing activities.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 March 2009
amounted to HK$19,349,000, as compared to HK$9,869,000 in
2008. The increase was mainly a result of the overall growth in
revenue, and an increase in staff costs due to the Group’s expansion
of its operational and technical teams in order to continuously
improve its wireless mobile search technology.

Gross Profit

The gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2009 increased by
HK$16,658,000 or 23% to HK$90,128,000. Gross profit margin
decreased from 88% in 2008 to 82% in 2009, mainly due to the
increase in staff and related costs under cost of sales.
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Operating Results (continued)

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased by HK$6,426,000 to
HK$2,418,000 in 2009. It was mainly due to a drop in the write back
of trade payables by HK$5,814,000.

Operating Expenses

Overall operating expenses including selling, administrative and
other expenses amounted to HK$76,163,000, an increase of
HK$34,043,000 or 81% over last year.

Selling expenses increased by HK$15,946,000 or 182% to
HK$24,697,000 as compared to 2008, was the result of an expansion
in sales, business development and marketing teams and an increase
in marketing and promotional activities. Administrative expenses
increased by HK$15,679,000 or 61% to HK$41,194,000, this was
mainly attributable to the increase in staff and related costs and share
option expense. Other expenses increased by HK$2,418,000 or 31%
in 2009 was mainly attributable to the increase in research and
development costs such as game searching and data mining.

Finance costs decreased significantly by HK$23,567,000 in 2009 as
there was no imputed interest on convertible bonds in the current
year since the premium over principal amount of the convertible
bonds was fully accounted for in last year.

Financial Position, Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
Ratio

The total equity of the Group as at 31 March 2009 was
HK$59,736,000 (2008: HK$37,335,000). The Group had net
current assets of HK$43,879,000 as at 31 March 2009 (2008:
HK$19,179,000). The Group’s current ratio (current assets over
current liabilities), was approximately 1.7 as at 31 March 2009
(2008: 1.3). The Group had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$81,771,000 as at 31 March 2009 (2008: HK$33,202,000).
During the year under review, the Group financed its operations
mainly with its revenue from operations. The Group adheres to a
prudent cash and financial management policy. In order to achieve
better cost control and minimize the cost of funds, the Group’s
treasury activities are centralized and cash is generally placed in
deposits, denominated mostly in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
As at 31 March 2009, the gearing ratio of the Group (total
borrowings over total equity), was 67% (2008: 120%).
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Operating Results (continued)

Capital Structure

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 28 March 2000.
There was no change of the Company’s capital structure during the
year under review. In connection with the convertible bonds
outstanding as at 31 March 2009, the latest position is set out
as follows.

Issue of Convertible Bonds

On 30 April 2007, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Tallmany Enterprises
Limited (“Tallmany”) and China Broadband Capital Partners, L.P.
(“CBQC”) for the issuance of five-year zero-coupon convertible bonds
(the “Convertible Bonds”) in the principal amount of HK$28,800,000.

On 6 June 2007, the Convertible Bonds were issued by the
Company to Tallmany in the principal amount of HK$28,800,000 (the
“Principal Amount”) pursuant to the terms set out in the Deed Poll
dated 6 June 2007, which also contain the Terms and Conditions of
the Convertible Bonds (the “Terms and Conditions”). There was no
movement in the number of the Convertible Bonds during the year
ended 31 March 2009. The Convertible Bonds may, upon exercise of
the conversion rights attaching to them, convert into new ordinary
shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.96 per
share (subject to adjustments) at any time during a five-year period
commencing from the date of first issue of the Convertible Bonds. If
the holder of the Convertible Bonds exercises the conversion rights
attached to the Convertible Bonds in full at the initial conversion price
of HK$0.96 per share, a total of 30,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company will be issued. If the holder of the Convertible Bonds
exercises the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds in
full at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.50 per share, a total of
57,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company will be issued.
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Operating Results (continued)

Capital Structure (continued)
Issue of Convertible Bonds (continued)

On the other hand, the holder of the Convertible Bonds will have the
right to redeem the Convertible Bonds early before their maturity
date on 5 June 2012 (the “Maturity Date”) if one (or more) of the
events of default defined in Clause 10 of the Terms and Conditions
(“Events of Default”) occur(s). If one (or more) of the Events of Default
occur, the holder of the Convertible Bonds may by notice in writing
require the Company to redeem the Convertible Bonds at 125% of
the Principal Amount (the “Early Redemption Amount”), and the Early
Redemption Amount must be paid within 10 days of such notice in
writing, as provided in Clause 8.2 of the Terms and Conditions.

Any Convertible Bonds not already converted or redeemed will be
redeemed on the Maturity Date at 100% of the Principal Amount.

Upon initial recognition, the Convertible Bonds issued were split into
liability and derivative components. On the issuance of the
Convertible Bonds, the excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component was recognised as the
liability component and was carried as non-current liabilities. The
fair value of the derivative component was estimated at the issuance
date and at 31 March 2009 with reference to the valuation
performed by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuers, using a binomial option
pricing model and the change in fair value of that component of
HK$4,827,000 (2008: HK$7,745,000) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Operating Results (continued)

Capital Structure (continued)
Issue of Convertible Bonds (continued)

Under the Subscription Agreement, the Company was required to
procure repayment of certain trade receivables (the “Trade
Receivables”) by 31 May 2007. Repayment was not procured by 31
May 2007 and a written supplemental agreement to the Subscription
Agreement dated 6 June 2007 was signed by the Company with
Tallmany and CBC (the “Supplemental Agreement”). Under the terms
of the Supplemental Agreement, the time for the Company to
procure repayment of the Trade Receivables was purported to be
extended to 30 September 2007. However, repayment of the Trade
Receivables was not procured by 30 September 2007 and as such,
out of an abundance of caution, for the financial year ended 31
March 2008, the Principal Amount was reclassified as a current
liability together with a 25% premium over the Principal Amount (the
total of these 2 amounts is equal to the Early Redemption Amount
defined above). The Early Redemption Amount continues to be
recognised in this financial year as a current liability.

However, it is the Company’s position that the holder of the
Convertible Bonds is not legally entitled to early redemption of the
Convertible Bonds based on a failure to procure repayment of the
Trade Receivables by 31 May 2007 and/or 30 September 2007 (the
“Alleged Subscription Agreement Breach”).

On 1 December 2008, the Company received from Tallmany a
written demand for early redemption of the Convertible Bonds at the
Early Redemption Amount on the basis of the Alleged Subscription
Agreement Breach. On 10 March 2009, the Company received from
Tallmany the Writ of Summons issued by the Registry of High Court
(the “High Court”), with Tallmany named as the Plaintiff, which claims
against the Company the sum of HK$36,000,000, being the Early
Redemption Amount. On 23 March 2009, the Company lodged with
the High Court the Acknowledgement of Service stating therein that
the Company intends to contest these proceedings. Subsequently,
the Company filed its Defence with the High Court on 20 May 2009.
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Operating Results (continued)

Capital Structure (continued)
Issue of Convertible Bonds (continued)

Having regard to the financial position of the Group, the Company is
of the view that if the High Court finds in favour of the holder of the
Convertible Bonds and it is entitled to exercise its right to early
redemption, the cash flow of the Group will be reduced. However,
the Group will have sufficient working capital for running its business

in the ordinary course.

Significant Investments and Disposal

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries by

the Company during the year under review.

Foreign Currency Exchange Exposure and Treasury Policies

As most of the Group’s trading transactions, monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, the
impact of foreign exchange exposure to the Group was minimal and
there was no significant adverse effect on normal operations. As at
31 March 2009, no related hedges were made by the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had a total of 166 employees (2008:
146). The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees and the market condition.
In addition to salaries and discretionary bonuses, employee benefits
included medical schemes, pension contributions and share
option schemes.
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Business Review

Despite the negative impact of the Sichuan earthquake and the
Beijing 2008 Olympic Games, revenue of the Group for this financial
year was able to maintain a steady growth, which was mainly
attributed to the following factors:

1. Further enhancement of operating capacity. The Group has
collaborated with an international-renowned consultancy
company in the area of user data mining. Through the
application of a new data mining based sales model, the
Group’s sales and marketing activities, as well as its operational
efficiency were notably enhanced.

2. Intensive expansion of business channels. Since the latter half
of this financial year, the Group has focused on the expansion
of the “STK cards” and “products embedded in mobile
phones” channels which have brought sustainable revenue
growth. On the other hand, in the last quarter of this financial
year, China Mobile has embedded the Group’s core music
search function into their SIM cards, including the newly
released 3G SIM cards, as a basic content.

3. Development of new products and perfection of services
capacities. The Group has continuously brought new
breakthroughs to its business through new products innovation
during the year under review. The Group has contracted with a
telecom operator for the provision of a SMS interactive service
system based on its patented search engine technology. This
new service system provides the mobile users with intelligent
electronic self-services, it has not only fulfilled the mobile users
desire on obtaining the latest product technology, but also
brought new sources of revenue to the Group. In addition, as
the Group’s wireless music search services capacities have
become more comprehensive, they created a variety of mobile
music value added services which have also contributed to the

growth of the Group’s revenue in the current year.
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B. Business Review (continued)

4.  Strengthened relationship with telecom operators. The Group
has continuously strengthened its business relationship with
China Mobile and other provincial telecom operators. At the
same time, the Group has obtained certain breakthroughs in its
business cooperation with new telecom operators, providing
the Group with more opportunities in exploring new business
channels, benefiting the Group from mitigating its business
risks and increment of revenue growth.

Outlook

Looking forward, the Group is facing with various competitions and
challenges, including potential changes in the business cooperation with
China Mobile due to the company’s adjustment in it business policy. Under
the negative global economic climate, it is expected that growth of the
telecommunication industry in the PRC will slow down and in turn impact
the Group’s revenue in the coming quarters. However, the Group has
confidence in the long term development of wireless search business in the
PRC and is well positioned to face on the challenges ahead and strives to
maintain stability in its businesses. The Group will continue to take a
conservative approach to remain its competitiveness in order to capture
future strategic opportunities.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Heon Wai, aged 48, is a founder of the Group, the Chairman of
the Board and an executive Director of the Company, in charge of the
overall corporate strategies and business development of the Group. He is
also an authorised representative of the Company. Mr. Yip holds a bachelor
degree in applied computer science from lllinois State University in USA.
Mr. Yip is a son of Mr. Yip Seng Mun, the Group’s former Chairman and a
brother of Mr. Yip Heon Keung, an existing executive Director and Mr. Yip
Heon Ping, a former executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Yip Heon Keung, aged 39, is an executive Director of the Company,
in charge of strategic alliances with business partners of the Group. He is
also the Compliance Officer, an authorised representative and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yip is a graduate of
Program for Management Development from Harvard University and holds
a bachelor degree in electrical engineering from the University Wisconsin-
Madison, USA. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yip worked in a software-
consulting firm as a consultant in the USA. He has been with the Group
since October 1996. Mr. Yip is a son of Mr. Yip Seng Mun, the Group’s
former Chairman and a brother of Mr. Yip Heon Wai, an existing
executive Director and Mr. Yip Heon Ping, a former executive Director of
the Company.

Mr. Guan Ming Jie, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company in September 2008. He is also the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company since December 2007 and responsible for overseeing the
day-to-day operations of the Group. Mr. Guan received a bachelor degree
in Computer Science and a master degree in Engineering from Tsinghua
University in Beijing. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Guan served as the
chief executive officer of In Fusio Information Technologies (Shanghai) Ltd.,
a world leading mobile gaming company, since October 2005. From
August 2004 to August 2005, Mr. Guan was the senior vice president of
the sales and corporate development department in Linktone Ltd. Prior to
that, he had been the general manager of Datacraft China Ltd. and the
chief operating officer of ASPire Technologies Shenzhen Ltd., a member
company of China Mobile. Mr. Guan has very extensive experience in the
[T solutions & consultancy services and the wireless value added services
in China.
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Non-executive Directors

Dr. Xu Zhiming, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company in June 2007. Dr. Xu received a doctoral degree in
Economics from University of Manchester in England in 1993, a master
degree in Economics from China Academy of Social Sciences in 1986, and
a bachelor degree in Physics from Peking University in 1983. Dr. Xu is
currently a partner of CBC Partners, L.P. (“‘CBC”). From 2002 to 2005, Dr.
Xu was a senior advisor of Tom Group Limited and an executive director
and chief operating officer of Tom Online Inc. Dr. Xu has extensive
experience in investment banking and corporate management.

Mr. Zhang Ying, aged 34, was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company in June 2007. Mr. Zhang received a master degree in
business administration from China Europe International Business School
in 2005 and a bachelor degree in finance from Tsinghua University in 1997.
Mr. Zhang is currently a partner of CBC. Prior to joining CBC, Mr. Zhang
served as the general manager of the capital market department of China
Netcom Group Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited, and the general manager
of the Operations Department and the Financing and M&A Department of
China Netcom Limited since July 2000. From August 1997 to June 2000,
Mr. Zhang was a consultant of McKinsey & Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. James T. Siano, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in March 2000. He is also the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Siano holds a
master degree in business administration from Pace University, USA and is
the president and the chief executive officer of Montblanc Pacific
Distributors Ltd. which is the Asia Pacific regional headquarters for the
Montblanc brand. Prior to that, Mr. Siano was the managing director of
Swatch Group of Switzerland (Hong Kong) Ltd. Mr. Siano has extensive
experience in the sales, marketing and finance field.

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine, aged 38, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in January 2005. She is also a
member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. She graduated from the Northern lllinois
University, USA with a bachelor degree in Computer Science. Ms. Tse is
currently employed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of a prestigious bank in
Hong Kong. Prior to that, she had worked in the software application field
for more than 10 years.
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Ms. Lai May Lun, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in March 2006. She is also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
She graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree in social science and a master degree in business administration.
Ms. Lai is currently a project manager of a China business company in
Hong Kong. Prior to that, she had been the administration manager of a
charitable foundation in Hong Kong. Further back, she had worked for the
Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited for more than 20 years and had
extensive experience in various areas of telecommunications.

Senior Management

Ms. Cheung Ka Yee joined the Group in 2002 and was appointed as the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company in 2005. She is responsible for
overseeing the financial operations of the Group. Ms. Cheung holds a
diploma in accountancy and a master degree in business administration
(Financial Services) from Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Cheung has extensive
experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and finance field.

Ms. Lo Oi Ling joined the Group in 2002 as the Company Secretary of
the Company, in charge of the Group’s overall company secretarial
matters. Ms. Lo holds a master degree in business administration from the
United Kingdom and is a member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.
Ms. Lo has extensive experience in the company secretarial field.
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Report of the Directors EE 2 &

The directors (the “Directors”) of Prosten Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) are pleased to present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2009.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 45 to 124.

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Summary Financial Information

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years.
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Results E
Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=t-HLEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—EThFE ZTENF ZEZtF ZZTRFE CZZTHF
FERT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Revenue I 25 109,477 83,339 51,222 59,050 54,791
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ATEF,
(E18) 21,197 24,359 (34,769) (27,454) (33,109)
Tax R (5,561) 2,128 280 274 1,300
Profit/(loss) for the year ARBRHEFAA
attributable to equity FEIEFE PR,
holders of the Company (1) 15,636 26,487 (34,489) (27,180) (31,809
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Summary Financial Information (continued)

Assets and Liabilities

MBENBE @

BEERAR

As at 31 March

W=A=+—-H

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

—EEAFE ZETN\EFE ZETLFE  ZEIEREFE  ZETOF

THER TAT TAT TAT TAT

Property, plant and equipment %1% - BiE k& 4,900 4,140 4,732 5,007 4,415
Investment property BEME 1,888 2,408 - - -
Deposits HES 1,253 222 2,274 503 716
Club debentures gES - — — — 732
Available-for-sale investments Al HERE 796 786 757 738 —
Deferred tax assets BEEREEE 8,377 10,600 — — —
Current assets REEE 108,018 85,116 13,170 43,006 62,623
Current liabilities mEEaE (64,139) (65,937) (16,290) (29,097) (21,847)
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (1,357) — — — —
Net assets BEFE 59,736 37,335 4,643 20,157 46,639
Issued capital BBITRA 59,767 59,727 59,237 51,125 51,125
Reserves B (31) (22,392) (54,594) (30,968) (4,486)
59,736 37,335 4,643 20,157 46,639

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and the
investment property of the Group during the year are set out in notes 13
and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

Convertible Bonds, Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements in the convertible bonds, the Company’s share
capital and share options during the year are set out in notes 26, 27 and
28, respectively, to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in note 29(b) to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2009, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution as calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (2001
Revision) of the Cayman Islands. Under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium account may also be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 94% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 81%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers during
the year.

Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Heon Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Yip Heon Keung

Mr. Guan Ming Jie (appointed on 16 September 2008)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. Xu Zhiming
Mr. Zhang Ying

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. James T. Siano
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine
Ms. Lai May Lun

it 1R
AARRNAEEZHEHRERNZEBHFHBEDBIER
BB RERM 00 REAEREHRA -

i 5 50 T fek 4

R-BENF=ZA=+—H0 REMSHSATE
(ZBZT—FEIR)HE  ARALEARDRZ
HifE - REFMSHS RN BHEERITESIRT

ARRER - ERBREEZES KBRS ZAMEK - K
REAREARAEEBERTFEEINNZERE -
B tn i (B BR 7R Al AR AL IR A DK

FEEFRHER

RERBFERN NEBRAAREFZHEREREEE
IHERMY ERAHARF 2 HERTHES1% °

ARBEEREMRE BB AL HEMBIR (5
E=MAM BAEARBEEITRARS%) RFARE
AEBRREPR/SARNHEFTHEESER

EmiEm o

EE

REARBERARSARRRRZEBEZTNT

HITESE :

HEREE (FF)

EmREE

BHARNEE (RZZEZ/\FLA+BEZT)
FHTES:

FEEE L

RS E

BIYBTESE:

James T. Siano %t 4
M ABZE
REMRT LT

EERREEREREAT —REAFER 21



22

Report of the Directors EE &%

Directors (continued)

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Yip Heon
Wai, Mr. Yip Heon Keung and Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”).

Mr. Guan Ming Jie, appointed pursuant to article 112 of the Articles of
Association, will hold office until the AGM and, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the AGM.

Independent Non-executive Directors’ Confirmations of
Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of its independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors, Mr. Yip Heon Wai and Mr. Yip Heon
Keung, has entered into a Director’s service contract with the Company for
a term of one year commencing from 1 April 2003 (the “Service Contracts”)
which were renewed automatically each year for successive terms of one
year subject to termination by either party giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other party. Pursuant to the supplemental
agreements entered into between each of the above two executive Director
and the Company on 1 April 2004 and 1 April 2007 respectively, the terms
of the Service Contracts were extended for a fixed term of three years from
1 April 2004 to 31 March 2007 and from 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2010,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association. Otherwise than as amended by the supplemental
agreements, all other provisions of the Service Contracts remain in full
force and effect.

Mr. Guan Ming Jie, an executive Director, has entered into a Director’s
service contract with the Company for an initial term of one year
commencing from 16 September 2008 and is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Each of the non-executive Directors, Dr. Xu Zhiming and Mr. Zhang Ying,
was appointed for a fixed term of one year, commencing from 1 July 2007
which were renewed automatically each year for successive terms of one
year, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the Articles of Association.
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Report of the Directors EE 2 &

Directors’ Service Contracts (continued)

Mr. James T. Siano has renewed the letter of appointment with the
Company as an independent non-executive Director of the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2008 and is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles
of Association.

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine has renewed the letter of appointment with the
Company as an independent non-executive Director of the Company for a
term of one year commencing from 1 January 2009 and is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles
of Association.

Ms. Lai May Lun has renewed the letter of appointment with the Company
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company for a term of
one year commencing from 1 March 2009 and is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board of Directors
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Except as detailed in note 32 to the financial statements, no Director had a
material beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole

or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or
existed during the year.
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HARKLTERARBBERZERN  TEER/E
RAZBIAFATES EHA—F A-TTN
F-A—BRER WARRABEEARGES
RN EREE -

REMULIEBARRBERZERN  TEER/AE
RAZBIFATES  FHA—F BA-_TTN
FZA-RBAR YEARRESSRANGES
RN EREE -

BLuatFESN  BRESRITZRRBEFREG LEE
BEZEFEARAMETIRFEHETER
RRARAR—FRRMEE CEERERIN) TIRK
EZz&H) -

EEME
BEEZHSABBRRRBRAG LiUE - Hioii$
MEFFLSEEE WY  BERKE ALK
EEEEBETE

EECAaNER

4 B %5 5 3R B SEG2 AT 5F i 4b - B E LR A (]
ARARREETHBRRRFRGTYL  AHAEE
CEBBEAZAMGOTREEEIMEEAR
i

EEEN

FARALETLKTAABEEREEAREEEEL
BEREDEBZAEK -

EERREEBREREAT —REAFER 23



Report of the Directors EE &%

Share Option Schemes

The Company operates two share option schemes (the “Schemes”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further details of the
Schemes are disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.

The following tables disclose movements in the Company’s share options
outstanding during the year:

The share option scheme became effective and commenced on 28 March
2000 (the “Old Scheme”):

Number of share options™*

BREE

AR REMEBBRES ([ZFEME]) 8ER
AAEEEKDEXRNELEMzAERSEHER
HEEREE -  ZFTE2i#E— PHERVBEREM
T8I o

TERBAFEAAARNKTEBRES 29

R -

BREAEE —ZTZEF = -+t N\BRFEREN
([E&TEl]) -

BREYE™
Name or Date of Exercise period of ~ Exercise price of
category of At 1 April Granted Exercised Transferred Forfeited At 31 March re-grant of share options share options
participant 2008 during the year  during the year  during the year  during the year 2009 share options* re-granted re-granted*
SEE RZBENEF RER RER RER RER  RZBBAF BRE ERBRE ERBRE
ABAER mA-H B fiy:d a8 #EK =A=t-AH ERAH 21T R ER 2fT R E
HKS per share
Br(8k)
Directors
=
Mr. Yip Heon Wai* 5,300,000 - - - - 5,300,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 0.40
Empra’ 3 3 21 August 2011
NAZ+ZH “EZ-F\AZ+ZHZE
—2——%N\A=t-H
Mr. Yip Heon Keung 5,300,000 - - - - 5,300,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 0.40
ERRiE —F%-% 21 August 2011
NAZ+ZB ZZEZ-FAA-tZHZ
—E——%NAZt-H
10,600,000 - - - - 10,600,000
Other employees
of the Group
*E@
HitES
In aggregate 14,765,000 - - - - 14,765,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 0.40
&t —EE-F 21 August 2011
MNAZ+ZR ZEE-fAAZtZRE
“E-—E\AZ1+-H
25,365,000 - - - - 25,365,000
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Report of the Directors EE 2 &

Share Option Schemes (continued) BRERE (@
The share option scheme became effective and commenced on 23 April BiREE g EE _FNA-+=BEABEN
2002 (the “New Scheme”): (FFEretdll) -
Number of share options™*
BREHE
Name or Date of Exercise period of  Exercise price of
category of At 1 April Granted Exercised Transferred Forfeited At 31 March grant of share options share options
participant 2008 during the year  during the year  during the year  during the year 2009 share options* granted granted*
s8% RZBENE RER RER RER RER  RZBBAF BRE RuiBRE REBRE
ZRAER mA—-H B e a5 ®EW =A=t-AH & B ZITRHR RATEE™
HKS per share
B (ER)
Director
Bz
Mr. Guan Ming Jie* - - - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 3 April 2008 3 April 2008 to 0.410
BANELE" TN 2 April 2018
mA=H “ZZ\FmA=HE
—T-\fWAZR
. - = 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
Other employees
of the Group
rEE
iR
In aggregate 800,000 - - - - 800,000 22 May 2002 22 May 2002 to 0.260
At “BRE-F 21 May 2012
TAZ+ZE ZEE-FHEA-tZRHEZE
“E-ZfRAZt-H
In aggregate 1,650,000 - - - - 1,650,000 26 March 2004 26 March 2004 to 0.100
ait —RETNE 25 March 2014
ZAZTRE ZEEEEZAZTAREEZE
“E-ME=A=THA
In aggregate 7,580,000 - - - (200,000) 7,380,000 10 May 2006 10 May 2006 to 0.170
Eh ZTTRF 9 May 2016
RATHE “ZERFRATHE
T-R"ERANE
In aggregate 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000 23 November 2007 23 November 2007 to 0.878
B ERLE 22 November 2017
+-BR=ft=8 ZZTtEt-f-1+=HE
“F—+F+-A=tZH
In aggregate 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 0.600
EL —ET)\E 1 January 2018
—AZH “ZR\F-AZRE
—E-\5-A-H
In aggregate - 9,000,000 - (5,000,000) - 4,000,000 3 Apri 2008 3 April 2008 to 0.410
aEt ZTENF 2 April 2018
mA=AH “ZZ\FMA=HZE
—E-\$MmAZA
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Share Option Schemes (continued) BRERE (@

The share option scheme became effective and commenced on 23 April BiREE g EE _FNA-+=BEABEN

2002 (the “New Scheme”): (continued) (Tratd ) - (&)

Number of share options™*
BRERE™

Name or Date of Exercise period of  Exercise price of

category of At 1 April Granted Exercised Transferred Forfeited At 31 March grant of share options share options

participant 2008 during the year  during the year  during the year  during the year 2009 share options* granted granted*

SEE R-BENF RER RER RER RER  RZBBAF BRE BREBRE BHBRE

ZRAER mA-H i e a5 #Ew =A=t+-AH RS ZITERR ZiTRE"

HKS per share
BL(8R)

Others

Hits

In aggregate 200,000 - - - - 200,000 26 March 2004 26 March 2004 to 0.100

CH “EENE 25 March 2014

ZAZtRRE ZTTWF-A-tRAZE
ZE-ME=AZFAA

In aggregate 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 24 June 2005 24 June 2005 to 0.100
At —ZERE 23 June 2015
AAZTEE ZETRFASAZTHEAZE
“E-RERAZT=A

In aggregate 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 29 June 2006 29 June 2006 to 0.380
ast ZRERE 28 June 2016
AAZTAR ZZEREXNAZ+NRE
“E-R"EAAZTNR

In aggregate 5,000,000 — — — — 5,000,000 6 July 2007 1 October 2008 to 0.396
&t —TT+tF 5 July 2017
+ARH —2Z\F+A-AZ
“E-tE5tARA

In aggregate - 5,400,000 (200,000) - - 5,200,000 3 April 2008 3 April 2008 to 0.410
ait ZZENEF 2 April 2018
mA=AH —ZT)\EWAZHE
“F-N\FWAZH

In aggregate - 400,000 (200,000) - - 200,000 3 June 2008 3 June 2008 to 0.417
ast —EEN\F 2 June 2018
~A=H “2Z\$XAZHE
—E-N\¥xAZH

22,230,000 14,800,000 (400,000) — (200,000) 36,430,000

Notes to the tables of share options outstanding during the year: FRERITEBRER 2T -

* The time of acceptance of the share options was within 21 days from the options - BRECEMASEAEEREZNARIT 21 BR -
offer date. The share options granted are subject to certain vesting period and vary BEEMBEREAES AT FIRL 2BRERE
for each category of participant as specified under the respective share option TRZLEZEERMZTRZFBHAER
schemes.

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of = EREZITEEEHRIAKRET  KARARE
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. BERUEERA THE -

=*  There were no options cancelled during the year. o FRET B RAE o
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Report of the Directors EE 2 &

Share Option Schemes (continued)

Notes to the tables of share options outstanding during the year: (continued)

# In addition to the options to subscribe for up to 5,300,000 shares personally held

by Mr. Yip Heon Wai, he is also deemed to be interested in the share options held
by his spouse (in her capacity as an employee of the Company) to subscribe for
4,300,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.40 per share
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”), and whose exercise period is from 22 August
2001 to 21 August 2011.

" Mr. Guan Ming Jie was appointed as a Director of the Company on 16 September

2008. Pursuant to the New Scheme, he is entitled to the share options granted to
him on 3 April 2008 to subscribe for 5,000,000 shares of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$0.41 per share in his capacity as an employee of the Group.

The Directors have estimated the values of the share options granted
during the year, calculated using the binomial option pricing model as at
the date of grant of the options:

granted during the year

BB AT & (m)

FRERTEBRER 2 ME - (&)

! HEm#tEREAFETRERZ 5300000 &
Bz EREN  TERAEBERS (UAQA
RBESH) BEBREZER  IREEEEANSE
571 EFFRIEGKRN ([FHFRAEKH]) 8 XV
IR T 0.40 BT 2 TEERE A QA 4,300,000
Bepsn - ZEEBREZITERAE ST —FN\NA=T
—RAE=T—FN\A=+—Hi-

o BERARNRER_ZET)\FNLA+NBEZTAAR
RIES - REFIE HAEEUAEEEEZSH
ZER-ZZET NFENAZABRTHEZERE K&
1% 0.41 B 2 TEERE AR 5,000,000 ARG -

EERE_AEABERECEEARREBERER
HZERFE B RFARL ZBREFSZ(E
A

Theoretical value
of share options

Number of options

Grantee AEA RERFEE 2 ERESE EREZIEREE
HK$

BT

Director - 5,000,000 1,083,400
Other employees HiES 4,000,000 1,354,250
Others Hib 5,800,000 1,548,350
14,800,000 3,986,000

The binomial option pricing model is a generally accepted method of
valuing options. The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the
values of the share options were risk-free interest rate expected volatility,
and dividend yield. The measurement dates used in the valuation
calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the binomial option pricing
model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to the subjective
nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the
expected future performance input to the model, and certain inherent
limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. Any change to the variables used may materially affect the
estimation of the fair value of an option.

“HEABEREERARYBRELETEHEEZAR
TE-AHEBREEENMRAZEABRRAER

BAE - FHRBREHRE - REEERMR
Rz ERHIRBEREER LB -

—EABERREERAGHERREEEEETR
R EAERRERTELBR REERERRAZ
ETEBREBZTITREERMEAELS 2 ETRE
R -

BhEZEEEE TIBERRZTAZEME( -
PIRAzBE 2 ENEBH AL HBREZ A FER
ZEFTELEERTE -

EEb2RERAR —2EAFEER 27
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were, pursuant to the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company, notified to the Company and the Exchange, were as follows:

Interests or short positions in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of
the Company

EERKRO - HEAROKREFZ2EREZR
KR

R-ZZTEENFZA=Z+—H BEERFTETHAE
RARBIRETMEEEB(EERESFRPER
BIEEXVER) 2 B fh ~ RGN REFTEBRIEE
FMHE GO EXVBETRESHHAMEARRF K
EREBMERZMBERDAR ([BRAT]) 2SR E
(BREBEES RS GOEBIECESHE EK
BEBBZEZNAR)  RALHERARRRIE
BHERBEGKAFGEFzZELZMAZ ERZK
KB BRBARARAFRNERIERTETESR S
ZITATRAAEMNG AR A R Z B SOR B
T -

RAR A EBERIAARD 2 s RAKE

Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares or the Company’s
underlying shares issued share

Note (4) capital

LEEER Note (5)

Capacity and 48 E = HARA T

Name of Director Notes nature of interest 1H B8 BR 12 ERITREAEDL
BEEpnR B 5 B RERME B E @) M 5% (5)
Mr. Yip Heon Wai (1) &(@Q) Interest of a controlled corporation 100,000,000 (L) 16.73%
EmgirE —AREH ARz R 30,000,000 (S) 5.02%
Mr. Yip Heon Keung 2) & (3) Interest of controlled corporations 404,280,619 (L) 67.64%
ESE:$ e 2P HlAE 2 s 30,000,000 (S) 5.02%

Notes:

(1) These shares are held by Uniright Group Limited (“Uniright”) and its entire issued
share capital is held by Mr. Yip Heon Wai and Mr. Yip Heon Keung in equal shares.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Heon Wai is deemed to be interested in 100,000,000
shares of the Company held by Uniright.

) Among these shares, an aggregate of 304,280,619 shares are held through
Greenford Company (PTC) Limited, Century Technology Holding (PTC) Limited and
Bakersfield Global (PTC) Corporation as trustees of The Greenford Unit Trust, The
Century Unit Trust and The Bakersfield Unit Trust, respectively. All the units of
which are held by Ace Central Group (PTC) Limited (“Ace Central”) as the trustee
of The New Millennium Trust, a discretionary family trust and Mr. Yip Heon Keung
is the sole director and sole shareholder of Ace Central. 100,000,000 shares are
held by Uniright and its entire issued capital is held by Mr. Yip Heon Wai and Mr.
Yip Heon Keung in equal shares. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Heon Keung is
deemed to be interested in 304,280,619 shares of the Company held by Ace
Central and 100,000,000 shares of the Company held by Uniright, respectively.
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GEX

(1) ZZR {5 B Uniright Group Limited ([Uniright]) ##
B HERHBETRAOBERELEERERBELE
ZEHE REFHFRBERL  ERfTERR
A1 Uniright BT B 42 8] 100,000,000 & B& 15
AR -

(2)  RZERMGF 4 304,280,619 B 17 i Greenford
Company (PTC) Limited * Century Technology
Holding (PTC) Limited } Bakersfield Global (PTC)
Corporation % 54 The Greenford Unit Trust * The
Century Unit Trust & The Bakersfield Unit Trust
ZERFENGORFAE  ZEEFE2MBEMTA Ace
Central Group (PTC) Limited ([ Ace Centrall) LA
The New Millennium Trust ( —HBZ2#EXE{EE) 2
REAENER - MERK %L LA Ace Central Z M
—EERMHE—RE ° 100,000,000 f&A% 1% B Uniright
BE HEHERTRABERZALTERERRE
SEERE  REBEESFRHABKL - EmARLER
B A5 Bl Ace Central AT #5 7 22 7] 304,280,619
& B& 15 K Uniright BT # 248 X @) 100,000,000 A% A% 1)
hEEA R -
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures (continued)

Notes: (continued)

) On 6 June 2007, Uniright issued to Tallmany Enterprises Limited (“Tallmany”) the
zero-coupon exchangeable bonds (“Exchangeable Bonds”) in the principal amount
of HK$30,000,000. If the exchange rights attached to the Exchangeable Bonds
are exercised in full at the initial exchange price of HK$1.00 per share, a total of
30,000,000 shares of the Company will be transferred by Uniright to Tallmany.

(4) The letter “L” denotes long position in the ordinary shares of the Company. The
letter “S” denotes short position in the underlying shares of the Company.

5) Based on 597,675,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2009.

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company are
separately disclosed in the section “Share Option Schemes” above.

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial personal
equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the
Company solely.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of the Directors of
the Company had registered an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share Option Schemes” and “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

EERRGD HBEARORBEHFZ2EZER
K (E)

M : ()

@8 W =ZZFZT+F X A X H: Uniright @ Tallmany
Enterprises Limited ([Tallmany|) 21T A £ %8 A
30,000,000 B Tz B E A EikE S ([ Al (E
F1) MU EBRESMECEHRAERNPERES
f% 1.00 BT EZZITE © Uniright 1§ @ Tallmany &
# 4 #£ 30,000,000 A

(4) L) *BRERARETEBR IR -[S] FERE
RARBIEBR G 2 AR -

6) BER-_ZZTAHEF=ZAZ+T—BEZEITZ
597,675,000 R AR RIRMAHETE ©

EERARRBEREES

8| —fREE -

TR EXTE R

BEaEHN  ETEERARAANEITEE THE
REIZFEEEARA EE -

BREXHEBREN RZTETZAF=ZA=+—8"
RRABEERAR R HEAAEEE 2 B &8
MO P EREAACHERNREZ S LB HRIE
B2MEFEZELMA - HREAER EHRAE
SAGIRAMERRRI R 2 ARKE -

EEREROIESZ 2ER

B bRt 8l RIESXEN - AEAKND
Bz FORB R ESN - F R IR E
AERNESE FESEBREBHIARARFFLARIZER
BARBIZEMHESMERZEN  WEHRE
TSN - RABRE R NERRREF
MBS LB AT SL A A A B E F I H )X
ANERESHZFENZ AR -
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2009, shareholders (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Interests or short positions in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of

the Company

Name of shareholder

BRER

Greenford Company (PTC) Limited

Century Technology Holding (PTC)

Limited

Bakersfield Global (PTC) Corporation

Ace Central Group (PTC) Limited

(as trustee of The
New Millennium Trust)

(LAThe New Millennium Trust

ZEFEAEMD)

Mr. Yip Heon Ping
BT S
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Notes
B 5

(1)

@

©)

Capital and
nature of interest
FHR
EaME

Directly beneficially owned
BEEE=RESR

Directly beneficially owned
BEEEREAR

Directly beneficially owned
BEEE=ESR

Trustee of a discretionary
family trust and through
controlled corporations
EREREEFRZZTEAR
FEREEH AR

Object of a
discretionary family trust,

benefically owned and through

a controlled corporation
EPRRKETZ
HEHE  ERBER
FEiR—EXEH QA

TERRZEZRAXA

Number of
ordinary shares or
underlying shares

Note (11)

EBERE
HEROROHBE
M EE(1)

122,597,702 (L)

122,597,701 (L)

59,085,216 (L)

304,280,619 (L)

310,580,619 (L)

RZZBZEAF=ZA=+—0 RARARMHIIEH
BB RIEE 5 M EROIEXVEE2 R E3D
B2 GXAMARRE - RATHEN AR ARE
EHREMEGIIFEBHEF2ECMZARA K
MBABEBRDZBEIXRBEZBER(RRTAESFH
TEBTHAEBRIMNMT

RARAEBERIAEARD 2 #am KB

Percentage of

the Company’s
issued share
capital

Note (12)

R NN
ERITREBEDL
MHEE(12)

20.51%

20.51%

9.89%

50.91%

51.96%



Interests and Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders

(continued)

Name of shareholder Notes
REREH B 5
Mr. Yip Seng Mun 2), (38), (4) & (6)
HERLE

Knicks Capital Inc. (7)

Mr. Zhang Xingsheng (7)

oRBE A SE A

Uniright Group Limited (8) & (10)

9 &(10)

Tallmany Enterprises Limited

Notes:

Report of the Directors EE 2 &

Capital and
nature of interest
SR
ERME

Founder of a

discretionary family trust,
beneficially owned and through
controlled corporations
PRRIEETEL

BIEAN  BREEAR
BB A A

Directly beneficially owned
BEEERHESR

Beneficially owned and through
a controlled corporation
BEREAR
FHiE—HEEES A

Directly beneficially owned
BEEERESR

Directly beneficially owned
BEEERESR

CEE

(1) Greenford Company (PTC) Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin (1)
Islands and its entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Yip Heon Ping, a former

Director of the Company.

2) Century Technology Holding (PTC) Limited is a company incorporated in the British (2)
Virgin Islands and its entire issued share capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Yip

Seng Mun, a former Director of the Company.

©)) Bakersfield Global (PTC) Corporation is a company incorporated in the British (3)
Virgin Islands and its entire issued share capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Yip

Seng Mun, a former Director of the Company.

ordinary shares or
underlying shares
Note (11)

EEREY
HEAROROBE
MFEE (1)

310,280,619 (L)

50,925,000 (L)

50,925,000 (L)

100,000,000 (L)
30,000,000 (S)

190,000,000 (L)

TERRZEZRAR (&)
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

)

An aggregate of 304,280,619 shares are held through Greenford Company (PTC)
Limited, Century Technology Holding (PTC) Limited and Bakersfield Global (PTC)
Corporation as trustees of The Greenford Unit Trust, The Century Unit Trust and
The Bakersfield Unit Trust, respectively. All the units of which are held by Ace
Central as the trustee of The New Millennium Trust, a discretionary family trust
established with Mr. Yip Seng Mun as the founder and Mr. Yip Heon Ping as one of
the discretionary objects for the time being. Both of them are the former Directors
of the Company.

Mr. Yip Heon Keung, a Director of the Company, is the sole director and sole
shareholder of Ace Central.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Heon Ping is deemed to be interested in 304,280,619
shares of the Company as one of the discretionary objects of The New Millennium
Trust. In addition, he is also entitled to his share options to subscribe for 6,300,000
shares of the Company in his capacity as an employee of the Group.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Seng Mun is deemed to be interested in 304,280,619
shares of the Company as the founder of The New Millennium Trust and personally
interested in 2,000,000 shares of the Company. In addition, he is also entitled to
his share options to subscribe for 4,000,000 shares of the Company in his capacity
as an employee of the Group.

Knicks Capital Inc. is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its
entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Zhang Xingsheng.

Uniright is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its entire issued
share capital is held by Mr. Yip Heon Wai and Mr. Yip Heon Keung in equal shares,
both are the Directors of the Company.

Tallmany is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and currently holds
30,000,000 shares of the Company. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of China
Broadband Capital Partners, L.P.,, a fund established in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted limited partnership (the “Fund”). CBC Partners, L.P. (“CBC Partners”)
holds approximately 1.01% of the issued share capital of the Fund, which in turn is
ultimately wholly owned by Dr. Edward Tian indirectly. Dr. Xu Zhiming, a Director of
the Company, is also a director of Tallmany.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(10)  Tallmany is also the holder of the zero-coupon convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$28,800,000 due in 2012 (the “Convertible Bonds”) issued by the
Company on 6 June 2007. If the convertible rights attached to the Convertible
Bonds are exercised in full at the initial conversion price of HK$0.96 per share,
Tallmany will become interested in a total of 30,000,000 shares of the Company. If
the convertible rights attached to the Convertible Bonds are exercised in full at the
adjusted conversion price of HK$0.50 per share, Tallmany will become interested
in a total of 57,600,000 shares of the Company (the “CB Adjustment”). However,
no CB Adjustment was required.

Simultaneously, Tallmany is also the holder of the zero-coupon exchangeable
bonds in the principal amount of HK$30,000,000 due in 2012 (the “Exchangeable
Bonds”) issued by Uniright on 6 June 2007. If the exchange rights attached to the
Exchangeable Bonds are exercised in full at the initial exchange price of HK$1.00
per share, a total of 30,000,000 shares of the Company will be transferred by
Uniright to Tallmany. If the exchange rights attached to the Exchangeable Bonds
are exercised in full at the adjusted exchange price of HK$0.525 per share, a total
of 57,142,857 shares of the Company will be transferred by Uniright to Tallmany
(the “EB Adjustment”). However, no EB Adjustment was required.

It is agreed between the parties to the Exchangeable Bonds subscription
agreement (the “EB Subscription Agreement”) that at completion, Uniright, as a
chargor, shall deliver to Tallmany, as a chargee, a duly executed share charge in
respect of the charging of 100,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company by
Uniright in favour of Tallmany (the “Share Charge”). On 6 June 2007, being the
completion date of the EB Subscription Agreement, Uniright executed and
delivered the Share Charge to Tallmany. Subject to the terms and conditions set
out therein, Uniright pledged 100,000,000 shares of the Company to Tallmany as
the collateral created by the Share Charge.

(11)  The letter “L” denotes long position in the ordinary shares of the Company. The
letter “S” denotes short position in the underlying shares of the Company.

(12)  Based on 597,675,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2009.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the Company or
their respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) have
any interests in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the Group
during the year.
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Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on
7 March 2000 and has formulated and from time to time amended its
written terms of reference in accordance with the provisions set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. James T. Siano (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine and Ms. Lai May Lun.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, review of the Group’s financial information and review of the
relationship with the auditors of the Group. Regular meetings have been
held by the Audit Committee since its establishment. The Audit Committee
held four meetings during the year under review.

The Group’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2009 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, who is of the opinion
that such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards,
the GEM Listing Rules and legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the GEM Listing Rules based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

Auditors

Messrs. Ernst & Young (“E&Y”) will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will
be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint E&Y as the auditors of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Yip Heon Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 June 2009
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance with a view to assuring the conduct of management of the
Company as well as protecting the interests of all shareholders. The good
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasis a quality board
for leadership and control of the Company, effective internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules including the new CG Code amended and became effective on 1
January 2009.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. In response to specific enquiry made by the Company, each of the
Directors gave confirmation that he/she complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors throughout the year ended 31 March 2009.

Board of Directors

Composition

During the year under review, the board of Directors (the “Board”)
comprises three executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. All Directors gave sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2009. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

In full compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company, during the year under review, had in place three independent
non-executive Directors and at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. They contribute to the Company with diversified industry
expertise, advise the management on strategy development and ensure
that the Board maintains high standard of financial and other mandatory
reporting as well as provide adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole. The Company
has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Composition (continued)

The Board as at 31 March 2009 comprised:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Heon Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Yip Heon Keung

Mr. Guan Ming Jie (appointed on 16 September 2008)
Non-executive Directors:

Dr. Xu Zhiming

Mr. Zhang Ying

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. James T. Siano

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine

Ms. Lai May Lun

The names, biographical details of the Directors and the relationships
among them are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section
of this annual report.

Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. At least 14 days notice of all
Board meetings were given to all Directors, who were all given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the meeting,
and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations regarding the
meetings are observed. The finalised agenda and accompanying board
papers are then sent to all Directors prior to the meeting.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the Board held four regular full Board
meetings. The individual attendance record of each Director is as follows:

=3¢ )

Exged (@)
BE_ZTNF=-A=+t-HILFE EFgH#T
HARMNAEREZTEEH  SEERAHFEER
Z RIS

Directors Attendance
BEx HE R
Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Yip Heon Wai (Chairman) EmgLE (FE) 4/4
Mr. Yip Heon Keung EmimiraE 4/4
Mr. Guan Ming Jie (appointed on 16 September 2008) EEANEE (RZEZN\FNLA+BEZMT) 2/4
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Dr. Xu Zhiming FEREL 4/4
Mr. Zhang Ying RAEALE 1/4
Independent non-executive Directors BIYEHITES

Mr. James T. Siano James T. Siano%c 4 3/4
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine WARZT 4/4
Ms. Lai May Lun Rt 4/4
Apart from the regular Board meetings of the year, the Board met on other B AREE FTHAB z EEZ e @3 TN

occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter was required.
The Directors would receive details of agenda items for decision and
minutes of committee meetings in advance of each Board meeting.

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed and
formulated the overall strategies of the Company, monitored financial
performances and discussed the annual and interim results, set annual
budgets, as well as discussed and decided on other significant matters.

The Company Secretary recorded the proceedings of each Board meeting
in detail by keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions made by the
Board together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if
any). Draft Board minutes were circulated to all Directors for comment and
approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for
inspection to Directors at any reasonable time on their request by any
Director. All Directors have access to relevant and timely information at all
times as the Chairman ensures that management will supply the Board
and its committees with all relevant information in a timely manner.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Delegation by the Board

The Company has set out the respective functions and responsibilities
reserved to the Board and those delegated to management. The Board
delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to executive Directors and
senior management while reserving certain key matters for its approval.
The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the Company’s
overall strategies and policies, approval of business plans; evaluating the
performance of the Company and oversight of management. It is also
responsible for promoting the success of the Company and its businesses
by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended at Board meetings.

Term of Appointment and Re-election

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a Director’s service contract
with the Company. Under the Code provision A.4.1, non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Each of the existing non-executive Directors is appointed for a fixed term
of one year, which were renewed automatically each year for successive
terms of one year, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association. All independent non-executive
Directors have formal letters of appointment setting out key terms and
conditions relative to their appointment and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.
Details of the term of appointment of the Directors are disclosed in the
section “Directors’ Service Contracts” of the Report of the Directors in this
annual report.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with a package of orientation
materials detailing the duties and responsibilities of Directors under the
GEM Listing Rules, the Articles of Association, related ordinances and
relevant regulatory requirements of Hong Kong.

Every Director is aware that, before accepting appointment as a Director,
he/she must be able to give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company.

Under the Code provision A.4.2, all Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment and every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Term of Appointment and Re-election (continued)

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the
Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election. At each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three (3) or
a multiple of three (3), then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

To improve independency and divisions of functions, the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company have been
segregated and have not been exercised by the same individual during the
year under review.

During the year under review, the Chairman, Mr. Yip Heon Wai, was
responsible for ensuring that the Board functions effectively and smoothly.
In doing so, the Chairman ensured that good corporate governance
practices and procedures were established and followed, and that all
Directors were properly briefed and received all relevant information prior to
each meeting. The Chairman was also responsible for overseeing the
implementation of corporate strategies of the Group.

During the year under review, Mr. Guan Ming Jie assumed the role of the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is responsible for overseeing
the day-to-day operations of the Group.

Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the CG Code, the Company established its
remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”) on 17 June 2005
with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website. The Remuneration
Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors of the
Company, namely Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Ms. Lai May Lun and one executive Director,
Mr. Yip Heon Keung.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and
reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year under review, a meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held on 23 June 2008 for reviewing and discussing the policy for
remuneration of Directors and the senior management. The individual

=3¢ )

¥HZEES (H)

CEFEE FMEEER _TTN\FAA-_T=
BRIT-REH UEHRIREETRSREEE
Z Hr BN TR R

cHHEZBEEENBEEHFEERZL

attendance record of each Remuneration Committee member is as follows: SRS -

Members Attendance
£8 HE IR
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (Committee Chairman) WPRBRLL (ZE2L/E) 1/1
Ms. Lai May Lun RRfrt 1/1
Mr. Yip Heon Keung EmaksE 11
Nomination of Directors BEEZRA

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The Board is AR TIE SURREEEG EFCTBEEERES

responsible for considering the suitability of a candidate to act as a
Director, and approving and recommending the termination of the
appointment of a Director.

The Chairman is mainly responsible for identifying suitable candidates for
members of the Board when there is a vacancy or an additional Director is
considered necessary. The Chairman will propose the appointment of such
candidates to each member of the Board for consideration and each
member of the Board will review the qualifications of the relevant
candidates for determining the suitability to the Group on the basis of his
qualifications, experience and background. The decision of appointing a
Director must be approved unanimously by the members of the Board and
make recommendation to the shareholders’ meeting for approval.

During the year under review, the Board has appointed Mr. Guan Ming Jie,
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, to be an executive Director of
the Company on 16 September 2008.

The Company currently does not have any plan to set up a Nomination
Committee given the relatively small size of the Board.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) on 7
March 2000 and has formulated and from time to time amended its written
terms of reference in accordance with the provisions set out in the CG
Code. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website. The existing Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr. James T.
Siano (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine and
Ms. Lai May Lun.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, review of the Group’s financial information and review of the
relationship with the auditors of the Group.

=3¢ )
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review. The ENEZECROBEEERNETHASE  BEXE
individual attendance record of each Audit Committee member is as follows: BEeXNESALR R InEuT

Members Attendance
Z£Z8 R
Mr. James T. Siano (Committee Chairman) James T. Sianot & (ZE@L/%) 3/4
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine WA I 4/4
Ms. Lai May Lun RERfmEt 4/4

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and audited annual
results during the year ended 31 March 2009 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of such
results complied with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements and that adequate disclosure has been made.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering and
reviewing the appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditors, including whether such
non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect on
the Group.

During the year under review, the Group paid HK$1,028,000 to the
external auditors for their audit services and HK$102,400 for their non-
audit related services.

AEBBZE-_ZENF=ZA=1T-HILFEZREL
ERFTERTHREREERFREXRACKAEZ
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Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company, Messrs. Ernst &
Young, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of
the Group are set out in the section “Independent Auditors’ Report" of this
annual report.

Internal Control

During the year under review, the Board conducted a review of its system
of internal control to ensure it is effective and adequate. The Board
convened meetings periodically to discuss financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. The Directors are of
the view that the existing system of internal control is effective and
adequate to the Group.

Investor Relations

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors convene the
annual general meeting each year to meet the shareholders and answer to
their enquiries.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The Directors, Company Secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management also respond to inquiries from
shareholders and investors on a timely basis.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Independent Auditors’ Report ¥& 37 #% 2 &l 3R 2

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

To the shareholders of
Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Prosten Technology Holdings
Limited set out on pages 45 to 124, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 March 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued) & 3 1% 2 Bl 3R 4 (&)

To the shareholders of
Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2009 and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

22 June 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement %4 8% &
Year ended 31 March 2009 &t Z —EZE N F=HA=+—HILFEF

2009 2008
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—EENEF —EENF
B 5 FET FE T
Revenue Uk %= 5 109,477 83,339
Cost of sales $HE R (19,349) (9,869)
Gross profit EF 90,128 73,470
Other income and gains H A & ez 5 2,418 8,844
Selling expenses $HE (24,697) (8,751)
Administrative expenses TR (41,194) (25,515)
Other expenses Hfh B (10,272) (7,854)
Fair value gain on derivative component AMIRESFITETAEE D
of convertible bonds ZAFEEKZ 4,827 7,745
Finance costs 75 & A 7 (13) (23,580)
Profit before tax B B A0 % R 6 21,197 24,359
Tax Bi1E 10 (5,561) 2,128
Profit for the year attributable to AABEEREEA
equity holders of the Company B FERRF 11 15,636 26,487
Earnings per share attributable to AABEEREEA
equity holders of the Company EEERER 12
Basic HK HK2.6 HK4.4
cents &1l cents 71l
Diluted e HK1.7 HK4.2
cents Al cents 7
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Consolidated Balance Sheet &8 EEAE X

31 March 2009 R=ZFZFENF=A=+—H

46

2009 2008
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—EZhF —ETENF
B 5 FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MK 13 4,900 4,140
Investment property KEME 14 1,888 2,408
Deposits HE 1,253 222
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 16 796 786
Deferred tax assets RIERIH & B 17 8,377 10,600
Total non-current assets EREEELEE 17,214 18,156
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade receivables & U BR 3R 18 17,500 42,361
Prepayments, deposits and SRR IE ° %’T ® R EA
other receivables FE W 3 19 5,824 6,249
Equity investments at fair value BAFE TE 5 BR 2 1 18 2 AR
through profit or loss BRI RERE 20 1,911 3,162
Due from Directors EWES 7 KIE 21 856 142
Pledged deposits [REAECREE 22 156 =
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREeEEY 22 81,771 33,202
Total current assets MENEEREE 108,018 85,116
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables FETBR R 23 2,838 2,840
Other payables, deposits received HEmEMNRIE  BWET €
and accruals K FEET R IA 24 16,762 9,673
Finance lease payables e BT RS FR & F0E 25 130 —
Tax payable FE S FE 1B 4,617 8,805
Convertible bonds AR E S 26 36,000 36,000
Embedded financial derivative BRARESRITETER 26 3,792 8,619
Total current liabilities mEBERRE 64,139 65,937
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFEE 43,879 19,179
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHABRABAERE
LIABILITIES 61,093 37 35
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Finance lease payables e B 75 70 & KR 25 197 —
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIESE 17 1,160 —
Total non-current liabilities B A EEE 1,357 =
Net assets EEFE 59,736 37,335
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity holders AAREEREEA
of the Company EiEER
Issued capital B 81T IR A 27 59,767 59,727
Reserves B 29 (31) (22,392)
Total equity EREE 59,736 37,335
Yip Heon Wai Yip Heon Keung
Chairman Director
ZEmE% AL
xE 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity %R & XS B K

Year ended 31 March 2009 #Z —EZENF=FA=1+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARREREEAES
Foreign
Share  Statutory currency Share Accum-
Issued premium reserve translation option ulated
capital account fund reserve reserve losses Total
2% & 43 I ik HEE BR 23t Sub-total equity

TR* A #EE R R o] hE REAG
Notes ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HKE000  HKE000  HKE000  HK$'000
i T#T TR TR TiET TR T TR T

At 1 April 2008 R-ZEZN\FMA—H 59,727 348,808 53 5,436 2,533 (379,222) (22,392) 37,335
Exchange differences arising GaBINIBARERM

on consolidation of EEZERES

overseas subsidiaries - — - 2,510 - — 2,510 2,510
Total income and expense REREERERZBA

recognised directly in equity Pt - — - 2,510 - — 2,510 2,510
Profit for the year EREF = = = = - 15,636 15,636 15,636
Total income and expense FRRAR Y BE

for the year — - — 2,510 — 15,636 18,146 18,146
Issue of shares BITRG 27 40 126 - - - - 126 166
Equity-settled share DEREE  BRELTH

option arrangements 29(b) - - - - 4,089 - 4,089 4,089
Transfer of share option reserve BRI R S BB

on the forfeited share options G 29() = = = = (17) 17 = =
At 31 March 2009 R-_ZTAF=A=+—H 59,767 348,934 53 7,946 6,605 (363,569) (31) 59,736
At 1 April 2007 RZZZ+tFMA—H 59,237 348,159 53 1,926 1,204 (405,936) (54,594) 4,643
Exchange differences arising HABINBARKE M

on consolidation of EAZERES

overseas subsidiaries - - - 3,510 - - 3,510 3,510
Total income and expense REREEEIZZBA

recognised directly in equity R eE — - — 3,510 - - 3,510 3,510
Profit for the year FREF = - - - - 26,487 26,487 26,487
Total income and expense FERRARF X 5

for the year - - - 3,510 — 26,487 29,997 29,997
Issue of shares BT 27 490 649 = = = = 649 1,139
Equity-settled share RS 2 ERERHE

option arrangements 29(b) — — — — 1,656 — 1,556 1,556
Transfer of share option reserve ERERBGRERER

upon the lapse of share options G 29(0) - - - - (27) 227 - -
At 31 March 2008 R-ZEZ\F=A=+—H 59,727 348,808 53 5,436 2,533 (379,222) (22,392) 37,835
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ZR&EEHERE R
Year ended 31 March 2009 # & —EZEhF=A=+—HIFZ

2009 2008
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
—EENEF —EENF
Bt 5 THERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBZHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax [ Fi A1 55 A 21,197 24,359
Adjustments for: RPN G| R IF -
Finance costs M ER 7 13 23,580
Interest income ISR PN B (975) (475)
Investment income BE U A B (570) (1,020)
Write back of trade payables JE 11 AR 3K [ 4% 5 (73) (5,887)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HeEyE  MERLHEZ
plant and equipment 18 B W 5 (175) (15)
Gain on disposal of equity investments HER AT BEYERERZ
at fair value through profit or loss BEETE 7 BN E W 5 - (246)
Depreciation e 6 2,316 1,871
Write off of items of property, plant ME - RE KRB HIE B i
and equipment 6 252 =
Impairment allowance for trade JE Uk BE R (B B s
receivables 6 366 3,203
Equity-settled share option VARE =R 45 2 PE IR T o
arrangements 28 4,089 1,556
Changes in fair value of: NEBEEE :
Investment property 15 &% 6, 14 580 (965)
Derivative component of AR EENTET A5
convertible bonds 26 (4,827) (7,745)
Equity investments at fair value AT BEERIEEZ
through profit or loss BERTE v IRFEIR A 6 1,251 2,479
23,444 40,695
Decrease/(increase) in deposits e d (gm) (1,031) 829
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FE U BE SR A (3 hn) 24,495 (89,095)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEFIE  F]& REA
deposits and other receivables FE W R IR A (3 hn) 425 (2,590)
Increase in amounts due from Directors FEU E = 2 FOB I N (714) (142)
Increase in trade payables JRE 1} BR FR 4% hn = 257
Decrease in amounts due to Directors e E E 2 B = (523)
Increase in other payables, deposits HEMEMRIE BRI R
received and accruals FE 5T X IE 5 N 7,089 2,704
Exchange realignment [E 5 3 =& 1,620 2,968
Cash generated from operations REEBRSEZH S 55,328 5,103
Interest received B WFLE 975 475
Investment income received BRI E WA 570 1,020
Interest paid EAFE = (16)
Interest element of finance lease FHERe R
rental payments BB S (13) —
Overseas taxes paid BTN IE (12) (5)
Taxes paid in Mainland China B B KRERIIE (6,125) —
Net cash inflow from operating activities RS HEES 7SR AFERE 50,723 6,577
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued) %R

Year ended 31 March 2009 #

ERERER @

E_EFAFZA=+—HIFE

2009 2008
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—EENEF —EENF
B 5 FET FE T
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEE 7SR A FEE 50,723 6,577
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXEKR2HRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BAVE  BEN
and equipment HESHEE 13, 30 (2,853) (1,066)
Purchase of an investment property BAREME 14 = (65)
Purchases of equity investments at BARATEBESERRE
fair value through profit or loss BRREEZBRIELE = (8,613)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  BER
property, plant and equipment RESIEE TE A 175 17
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEZEAFLEBEIER
investments at fair value through FEZREEZ
profit or loss AR #E IR & P18 5RIR = 3,220
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI ER 1T 13 UL AN (156) —
Net cash outflow from investing activities REXBS RS RLFE (2,834) (6,507)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEXK2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds %’f TR R (R 25 P15 I8 26 = 28,800
Proceeds from issue of shares 1T D TS A 27 166 1,139
Capital element of finance lease WBHEERSNRZ
rental payments N& 5 25 (93) —
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEBAGE 2R RAFHE 73 29,939
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BeRAESENENFEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 47,962 30,009
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHzHERBEEEY
of year 33,202 3,040
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, EXGE s BT
net 607 153
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZESREASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 81,771 33,202
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND ReRBESEEWD N
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances R LiEITES 22 38,557 27,199
Non-pledged time deposits with REEEERERR=EA R H
original maturity of less than 2 AR E BE R
three months when acquired 22 43,214 6,003
81,771 33,202
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Balance Sheet EE& &%

31 March 2009 R=ZFZFENF=A=+—H

2009 2008
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—EENF —EENEF

M5 FET THT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries ALY NCIPA 15 30,602 25,082
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - Fle REM

other receivables JEUg =18 19 141 407

Cash and cash equivalents HERBREEED 22 11 8,243
Total current assets MBEERE 152 8,650
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Accruals and other payables FEET 3R I8 K B b FE S 5RIB 24 2,961 1,420
Convertible bonds Al R fE 5 26 36,000 36,000
Embedded financial derivative BARESRITET R 26 3,792 8,619
Total current liabilities mBBERRE 42,753 46,039
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEEE (42,601) (37,389)
Net liabilities EEFE (11,999) (12,307)
DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS BEEH#
Issued capital B 21T A 27 59,767 59,727
Reserves B 29(b) (71,766) (72,034)
Total deficiency in assets EEBMBESE (11,999) (12,307)
Yip Heon Wai Yip Heon Keung
Chairman Director
EmE%g [ i
FE EFE
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2.1

Notes to the Financial Statements B # 3k & M 5F
Year ended 31 March 2009 &t Z —EZE N F=HA=+—HILFEF

Corporate Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands. The address of its registered office is Century Yard,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is Unit A3, 11/F., Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre,
56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares
are listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for an
investment property, derivative financial instruments and equity
investments, which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2009. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All income,
expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intercompany transactions and intercompany balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

21
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

2.2 Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations and
amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

HKAS 39 and Amendments to HKAS 39
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Amendments Measurement and HKFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Reclassification of Financial Assets
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of these new interpretations and amendments has had
no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

2.3 Impact of Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS  Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
27 Amendments Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements — Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate’

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ?

HKFRS 2 Amendments to HKFRS 2
Amendments Share-based Payment —

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations ?
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 #

2.3 Impact of Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 7
Amendments

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and
HKAS 39
Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 13

HK(FRIC)-Int 15

HK(FRIC)-Int 16

HK(FRIC)-Int 17

HK(FRIC)-Int 18

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Improving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments
Operating Segments '

Presentation of Financial Statements '
Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements 2

Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation and HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements
— Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendment to HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
— Eligible Hedged Items ?

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
— Fligible Hedged Items °

Customer Loyalty Programmes °

Agreements for the Construction of

Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation *

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners 2

Transfers of Assets from Customers ?
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

2.3 Impact of Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong

24

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs* which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. Except for the amendment to HKFRS 5 which is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009, other amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
although there are separate transitional provisions for each standard.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008
Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7,
HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18, HKAS 19, HKAS 20, HKAS
23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS 34, HKAS 36, HKAS 38,
HKAS 39, HKAS 40 and HKAS 41.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, it
has concluded that while the adoption of HKFRS 7 Amendments,
HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 (Revised) may result in new or amended
disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than deferred tax assets,
financial assets and investment property), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint
control over the Group;

(b)  the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);

()  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

(@ the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it
can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where
the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

2.5% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 30% or over the lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Leasehold building

Office equipment 30%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each balance
sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment property

An investment property is an interest in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of an
investment property are included in the income statement in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each balance
sheet date.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use
or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs
of such leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide
a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an embedded
derivative when the Group first becomes a party to it and assesses
whether an embedded derivative is required to be separated from
the host contract when the analysis shows that the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely
related to those of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs if
there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under
the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Gains or losses on investments held for trading
are recognised in the income statement. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in the income statement does not include any
dividends on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss if the following criteria are met: (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the
assets are part of a group of financial assets which are managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
asset contains an embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2009

24 FEESTHHEBE )

RERHMEHMEE ()
AEERERILANBTGEERTBIER
ARTETEYROMERBRIEAAITE
TEAMEERBRERYIFEZESNEY
HER FEEEFERRAATETA SR
TEANFIR - EANKRHLREHAK
BERANTRAMBTRERER  H I
TTEf

ARERYSHRREBTHSMAES A
CERHREY 2 ERNEE A BT

B -

FAFREBEZEREEMNRZ A (AL
BEEBERNEZEEZAY) TUER -
FREENERR -—RMSRENENE—
EHRARNEEZSMEERR -

B FEESIERERBREEL 2 M A E

BAFEENEMEESRREZEREE
BRBEFEEREVNIBEREREEREAF
BEIRMNEEREREZEMEE - 513
REHALENBAZEREE B AR
FEBEZERMEE FHIFEEREZREN
BENERRER  RIBEaRAERZ W
ZEE R FEEFELTERZELRE
EZEARE - ZERBTRET X ke
RBIFMEBR T AR -

e TIRE  EVLHERE  SREE
ARETERBEATEEIRREERERRRE
ZEREE  VEEMEBRICRERDERT
FAERAEEELAEREANKEBEEZ T —
BB (©ZEER—HEemEEZ 5
TREBEXHLHEZAREERE  EAQ
FEEEELRFEHERE: (IZeREERS
RARTAETE  EFEEDFCIE -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 # 2 —EZEANF=A=+—HILFEZF

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available for sale or are not classified in any of
the other two categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value, with gains or losses
recognised as a separate component of equity until the investment is
derecognised or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is
included in the income statement. Interest and dividends earned are
reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively and
are recognised in the income statement as “Other income” in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below. Losses arising from the impairment of such investments are
recognised in the income statement as “Impairment losses on
available-for-sale financial assets” and are transferred from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of club debentures cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such club debentures are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid
prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral, if any, has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

In relation to trade and other receivables, an allowance for
impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the
debtor and significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts
due under the original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount
of the receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed
as uncollectible.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the income statement, is transferred from
equity to the income statement. An allowance for impairment is
made for available-for-sale equity investments when there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or
where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” or "prolonged” requires
judgement. In addition, the Group evaluates other factors, such as
the share price volatility. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

° the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or
purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision)
on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group
may repurchase, except in the case of a written put option (including
a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at
fair value, where the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is
limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the
option exercise price.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables and other monetary
liabilities, are initially stated at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The
related interest expense is recognised within “Finance costs” in the
income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
income statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
income statement does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the
entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are met: (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the
liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
liability contains an embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of
a liability is recognised as a liability in the balance sheet, net of
transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined as the remainder of the
proceeds to the embedded derivative instrument; and this amount is
carried as a liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and equity components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Convertible bonds (continued)

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits characteristics
of an embedded derivative, it is separated from its liability
component. On initial recognition, the derivative component of the
convertible bonds is measured at fair value and presented as part of
derivative financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative component is recognised
as the liability component. The carrying amount of the derivative
component is remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction costs
are apportioned between the liability and derivative components of
the convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and derivative components when the instruments are initially
recognised. The portion of the transaction costs relating to the
liability component is recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items
that are recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance
sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b) solution integration services and wireless mobile value
added services income, when the relevant services have
been rendered;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

(d) investment income, when the policyholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates two share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including Directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined with reference to an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers using an appropriate pricing model,
further details of which are given in note 28 to the financial
statements. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is
taken of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to
the price of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”),
if applicable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not
the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification,
which increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured
at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in the employee retirement scheme operated by
the relevant local government bureau in Mainland China. The
contributions to be borne by the Group are calculated at a certain
percentage of the salaries and wages for those eligible employees.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are
initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are
taken to the income statement. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet
date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date and their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are included in the
foreign currency translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity,
the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Significant Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables

Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables is made based
on assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables and other
receivables. The identification of doubtful debts requires management
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such differences will
have an impact on the carrying value of the receivables as well as
doubtful debt expenses or write-back of doubtful debts in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

Significant Accounting Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of fair value of an investment property

As described in note 14 to the financial statements, the investment
property was revalued at the balance sheet date on an open market,
existing use basis by an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers. Such valuation was based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the estimation, the Group considers information
from a variety of sources, including current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.

Valuation of convertible bonds

As described in note 26 to the financial statements, the Convertible
Bonds include an embedded derivative that is measured at fair value
through profit or loss. The Company engaged an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers to assist in determining the fair value
of the underlying embedded derivative. The fair value of the
embedded derivative of the Convertible Bonds is determined using
the binomial option pricing model. The significant inputs into the
model were share price at grant date, risk-free interest rate,
conversion price, expected volatility of the underlying shares and
term of maturity. When the actual results of the inputs differ from
management’s estimate, it will have an impact on the fair value gain
or loss and the fair value of the derivative component of the
Convertible Bonds.

As at 31 March 2009, the fair value of the embedded financial
derivative was approximately HK$3,792,000 (2008: HK$8,619,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

Significant Accounting Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of share options

As described in note 28 to the financial statements, the Company
engaged an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers to
assist in the valuation of the share options granted during the year.
The fair value of options granted under the share option schemes is
determined using the binomial option pricing model. The significant
inputs into the model were share price at grant date, risk-free interest
rate, exercise price and expected volatility of the underlying shares.
When the actual results of the inputs differ from management’s
estimate, it will have an impact on share option expenses and the
related share option reserve of the Company. The fair value of the
share options granted during the year by the Company was
HK$3,986,000 (2008: HK$6,864,000). Including those share options
granted in prior years, total share option expense of HK$4,089,000
(2008: HK$1,556,000) was recognised during the year ended 31
March 2009.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The
carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses
at 31 March 2009 was HK$8,377,000 (2008: HK$10,600,000).

Segment Information

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary
segment reporting basis, by business segment. In determining the
Group’s geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the customers, and assets are
attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets. No
further geographical segment information is presented as the Group’s
customers and operations are located in Mainland China.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

Segment Information (continued) 4. DETEXR (@)

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed AREBZEKEEFDIRBEERME K FTIE
separately according to the nature of their operations and the {,\Zf‘jﬁuu&ﬁ&ﬁiu > AR LB EERE
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business c AEEEFEEB S HBAK —ERKER

segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different

au C AR 2 B RRTE B S R 2 R B e
Bl g EE MK B AEBRR - %%’“*

from those of the other business segments. Summary details of the ZHEEFBENT
business segments are as follows:
(@ the solution integration services segment provides solution @ BMRAIRBERGHIBIERHMBATRE

integration services; and R K&

(o) the wireless mobile value added services segment provides b EEBIHEERESBREESBIIT
wireless mobile value added services. BRTS °
Primary reporting format — business segments FTERRERX BB
Wireless
Solution mobile
integration  value added
services services
BRF R #EEBE Consolidated
BERS EER® =Ee
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET FHET
Year ended 31 March 2009 BE-_ZTNF=A=1+—HLEFE
Segment revenue from HINEF 2 D H M am
external customers 675 108,802 109,477
Segment results DERFELE 329 50,871 51,200
Other income and gains bW A R W= 2,418
Unallocated expenses Ko E A (37,235)
Profit from operations bl 16,383
Fair value gain on derivative aJ }f’““ RESTETERHZ
component of convertible NEEBEKS
bonds 4,827
Finance costs W% ER (13)
Profit before tax B Bt Al V& A 21,197
. o (5,561)
Profit for the year attributable to AARIERZETA A
equity holders of the Company JE 1 4 X35 R 15,636
At 31 March 2009 R-EBZEARF=A=+—H
Segment assets DEBE E - 28,366 28,366
Unallocated assets ROWMEE 96,866
Total assets REE 125,232
Segment liabilities DEAE 5,696 14,910 20,606
Unallocated liabilities AOBEERE 44,890
Total liabilities e g 65,496

EERBRRERAR —BBAEFEHR (D




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

Segment Information (continued) 4,

Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

2 EE R #)

FERFER - K5 (&)

76

Wireless
Solution mobile
integration value added
services services
R R Mm% E Unallocated Consolidated
BEIR%E ¥R % KO E =Ee
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTET F#&xT FET FHExT
Year ended 31 March 2009 BE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HLEFE
Other segment information: H 5 E & K
Capital expenditure BAREX = 1,927 1,346 3,273
Depreciation e = 1,538 778 2,316
Write back of trade payables JRE A< BR 2k [ 43 (73) — — (73)
Impairment allowance for JE W AR ORL (B B A
trade receivables - 366 = 366
Gain on disposal of LHEME BER
items of property, plant R EE R W
and equipment - - (175) (175)
Fair value loss on wEYEZ
an investment property AFEEERE = = 580 580
Fair value losses on RATEETERR
equity investments at EEHEREEZ
fair value through fRHERE 2
profit or loss AP EEEE - = 1,251 1,251
Equity-settled share option NEEEE 2
arrangements BB EL = 2,614 1,475 4,089
Write off of items of property, M - BEX
plant and equipment =8 TE B 8 = 252 = 252
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

Segment Information (continued)

Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

4. HHER )

FERFER - K5 (&)

Wireless
Solution mobile
integration value added
services services
fEA T 2 mei58)  Consolidated
BERK 18 1E AR 75 A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FAET
Year ended 31 March 2008 BZE-_ZZT/\F=A=1+—HILEE
Segment revenue from HINE P 2 9 B
external customers 614 82,725 83,339
Segment results DEPELE 582 58,170 58,752
Other income and gains H A A R e 8,844
Unallocated expenses KoHBEER (27,402)
Profit from operations R F 40,194
Fair value gain on derivative AMRESFITEIAS D 2
component of convertible ANEEBEERE
bonds 7,745
Finance costs B 7% & (23,580)
Profit before tax B 754 BT A 24,359
Tax Bi1E 2,128
Profit for the year attributable to KABERFTAR A
equity holders of the Company JE 1 4F 1955 7 26,487
At 31 March 2008 R-EBEZENE=A=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 45 55,368 55,413
Unallocated assets ROMREE 47,859
Total assets B E 103,272
Segment liabilities DEBEE 5,578 3,926 9,504
Unallocated liabilities ROMEE 56,433
Total liabilities FEN=R 65,937

EERBRRERAR —BBAEFEHR [/
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

Segment Information (continued) 4. DHTEXR @)
Primary reporting format — business segments (continued) FTEHRERX XK 53 (&)
Wireless
Solution mobile
integration  value added
services services
fRR T = w45 E  Unallocated Consolidated
BE R HE AR KHER A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&IT FHBIT FHBIT F#&IT
Year ended 31 March 2008 BE-_ZZN\F=A=+—HLEE
Other segment information: H o EpE w
Capital expenditure BARRX = 978 153 1,131
Depreciation e = 1,165 706 1,871
Write back of trade payables JIE 11 AR SR ] 4% (5,887) = = (5,887)
Impairment allowance for JFE Wi AR ORL (B B A
trade receivables — 3,203 = 3,208
Gain on disposal of HEDE  BER
items of property, plant R EE B W
and equipment = = (15) (15)
Fair value gain on wEYEZ
an investment property AFEEKZE — = (965) (965)
Fair value losses on RATEETERR
equity investments at EEHEREEZ
fair value through fRiERE 2
profit or loss AFEBEERE = — 2,479 2,479
Equity-settled share option iR EE 2
arrangements B A 2 = 1,499 57 1,556
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. WiH > HW AR K=
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net WEREAREE 7 %% - HERNFIEHRS
invoiced value of services rendered during the year, and business B LR (NER) B 2B EFEE -

tax, where applicable.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: W« A RKZSITOT ¢
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’'000
—EEAEF —EENEF
TER T T
Revenue I 2=
Services income P 75 U A 109,477 83,339
Other income H A A
Bank interest income HRITALE WA 975 475
Investment income HEWA 570 1,020
Write back of trade payables J& 1~F BR 2K o] % 73 5,887
Others HAh 625 236
2,243 7,618
Gains 22
Gain on disposal of items of property, LEME WENRKHBEEAEE
plant and equipment U % 175 15
Gain on disposal of equity investments HEERAFEBEYER
at fair value through profit or loss EIRFFERETE 7 RERE RS = 246
Fair value gain on an investment property WEMEZ AN FBEKS
(note 14) (MFE14) = 965
175 1,226
2,418 8,844

RENSERERAT —EBAEER (9



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 # & —EZEhF=A=+—HIFZ

6. Profit before Tax 6. MBRFANEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: REE 7 BT AN A &G TR IBEER :
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EENEF —EENF
FET FAT

Cost of services provided* 12 4t AR 7% i A 19,349 9,869

Depreciation e 2,316 1,871

Minimum lease payments under operating leases: 4 % 0 & KM &2 ¢

Land and buildings T REF 5,704 5,264
Motor vehicles ] 403 242
Auditors’ remuneration % SN B & 1,028 1,028

Employee benefit expense EERMAZ (BEESH

(including Directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (FtsE8)) :
Wages and salaries T & K & B 29,459 17,591
Equity-settled share option arrangements DARERS a5 E 7 BERR RE 2 2,461 824
Pension scheme contributions RINEFH SR
(defined contribution schemes) (REHFKEED 4,939 2,773
Severance payments BER & 384 7
37,243 21,195

Write off of items of property, plant and equipment  #1% - = K& & &8 B il 85 252 —

Impairment allowance for trade receivables JEWER RUR B 8 366 3,203

Research and development costs** T 25 K2 B B8 Ak AR+ 4,894 2,036

Fair value losses on equity investments at fair EAFEEINEREBRRR

value through profit or loss BREZREREZ ATFEEEE 1,251 2,479

Fair value loss on an investment property KEMEZ R FEEEE 580 —

* The cost of services provided includes depreciation and staff costs of * HE_ZTNF=ZA=1+—RBLLFEZRHER
HK$9,769,000 for the year ended 31 March 2009 (2008: HK$5,709,000), TP A B FE 4T B B B AR AN 9,769,000 7 7T
which is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately (ZZZ)N\F : 5,709,000 BTL) ' ZEKAIR
above. BRtA LB HE 2 BREET -

o The research and development costs for the year include HK$2,534,000 o AEEMFERAEX AN RIEEEITHIT R HAE
(2008: HK$2,036,000) relating to employee benefit expense for research EEB M EERAIMAE 2,534,000 BT (=
and development activities, which are also included in the employee benefit T N\F 12,036,000 B7L) * ZERAIE
expense disclosed separately above. AAALMBIHEZ EERAFALF -

At 31 March 2009, the Group had no forfeited contributions available R_EBEZNF=ZA=+—H AEETEX

to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years KA EFERFERDERARGEIHER(Z

(2008: Nil). TT)N\F : &) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 # 2 —EZEANF=A=+—HILFEZF

Finance Costs 7. HMKEAR
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’'000
—ZZThF —EENE
FET FH&T
Interest on bank overdrafts RITBEZ2FE - 16
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR ES 2 B&E N E (HiFE26)
(note 26) — 23,564
Interest on a finance lease MBHEEZFE 13 —
13 23,580
Directors’ Remuneration 8 EEMeS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules FNEETWeBBEBMIFMAIERIS LT R
Governing the Listing of the Securities on the Growth Enterprise Al ([aIZMR EmR B RES R ARG ZE 161
Market (the “GEM Listing Rules”) of the Exchange and Section 161 IRBEOT
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
rE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EENE —ZET)N\F
FTET T T
Fees we 200 200
Other emoluments: Hi e :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZAEREYHE 5,214 4,000
Equity-settled share option arrangements N iEE 2 R B 352 —
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFTEIH R 56 24
5,622 4,024
5,822 4,224
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Year ended 31 March 2009 # & —EZEhF=A=+—HIFZ

8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. EEME @
(a) Independent non-executive Directors (@ BIXEHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive Directors during RERALZNFBIERNTEST 2HEE
the year were as follows: wm
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EBENF —EENF
TER FET
Mr. James T. Siano James T. Siano %t 4 = —
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine M A¥ It 100 100
Ms. Lai May Lun BEMEZLT 100 100
200 200
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FRATEEMEN TEIFERTES
non-executive Directors during the year (2008: Nil). I (ZZTNEFE : &) -
(b) Executive Directors and non-executive Directors b) HTESRIHTES
The emoluments of each Director were as follows: ZFEFZHeRT :
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
in kind arrangements contributions Total
Fees #H&€ - ER LERFEZ SE{K€ remuneration
we RE®AR R =T8I B & 4 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHERT FHET FHET FHET
2009 —EBhE
Executive Directors: WITES :
Mr. Yip Heon Wai gL E = 2,000 — 12 2,012
Mr. Yip Heon Keung HE @R L — 2,000 — 12 2,012
Mr. Guan Ming Jie BEHAANLE - 1,214 352 32 1,598
- 5,214 352 56 5,622
Non-executive Directors: FEFH{TE £ :
Dr. Xu Zhiming HFEEE L - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Ying R 78 5t A = = - - -
— 5,214 352 56 5,622
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. EEME @
(b) Executive Directors and non-executive Directors b) HITESRIEHTES (E)
(continued)
Mr. Guan Ming Jie was appointed as an executive Director of ERREAER_ZEZENFALA+ ~BE
the Company on 16 September 2008. His salaries, allowances ZEABEARBNITESE - HIEALE
and benefits in kind, including the equity-settled share option BEEEMNTFTREZHS  2ZHEEEYMHZ
arrangements, paid to him in his capacity as an employee of (BFEARERS S v B RE 2o B ) Y &= 5
the Group have not been included as part of his Director’s ANEXREBEZEEMES R
remuneration for the year.
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
inkind  contributions Total
Fees e o M RIK4E  remuneration
ik REYH & B B & 48 51
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FHET
2008 —EENF
Executive Directors: WITES -
Mr. Yip Seng Mun EEER LA — — — —
Mr. Yip Heon Ping ERFEEE — — - -
Mr. Yip Heon Wai Rkt — 2,000 12 2,012
Mr. Yip Heon Keung L — 2,000 12 2,012
— 4,000 24 4,024
Non-executive Directors: EHITES :
Dr. Xu Zhiming FFARERE L = = — -
Mr. Zhang Ying RAILE — — — —
— 4,000 24 4,024
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or FAWEEEWEXRBREFAMES
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2008: Nil). ZRF(ZETENF &) o
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Year ended 31 March 2009 # & —EZEhF=A=+—HIFZ

9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9. HEBREFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2008: FARGGRTNEERE=-"RESE(ZZZ
two) Directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 NFE  WEZ) ENESFBE R LXK E8H,
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2008: three) - ERNEBRMEB(ZEETNFE: =£)3kE
non-Director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows: ERoHEENTMEBHT :
Group
rEE
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
—EENEF —ET)N\F
THERT FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUMREYNS 2,196 2,082
Pension scheme contributions RIASEHEIE R 24 38
2,220 2,120
The number of non-Director, highest paid employees whose FMEBRUTHENZIFEEESFHEE A
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: LU
Number of employees
EEAH
2009 2008
—EENE —EENEFE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 51,000,000 7 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T 2 1,500,000 7 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T 22,000,000 & 7T 1 —
2 8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 # 2 —EZEANF=A=+—HILFEZF

10. Tax

10.

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group did not
generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year
(2008: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries or jurisdictions
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Bi1R

HRAEERFRLEHEREBELELRE
AEM(ZTENF - &) WERALEE
HEABMNERZ BB - LR 2 BRBE
MOLRBASBERLEXEBEMEZBERKKEA
BEREWZR/ITEN REREMNRENR
IR RETERE -

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EENF —EENF
FEx F&T
Group:

Current — Elsewhere BVER — E b3 [@
Charge for the year FARLZH 4,261 8,794
Overprovision in prior years NEEERERE (2,401) (322)
Deferred (note 17) IEIE (M 5E17) 3,701 (10,600)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FARAMIEL L (ER) B 5,561 (2,128)

RENSERERAT —E2EAEE% 85



86

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

10. Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge/(credit) applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory tax rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its principal subsidiaries operate to the tax charge/

10.

BIE (%)

NERRARRREETEMBRREE T
BUAREIR 2R E B R Gt & 2 B B A E F 2 B
AW/ (ER) BREBRREXAEZHREAX

(credit) at the effective tax rate, are as follows: g (%) 2 SBRNT ¢
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
—EENE —ZETENEF
FET FHEIT
Profit before tax R 35 Al & A 21,197 24,359
Tax at the Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% REBNERBE165%
(2008: 17.5%) —EBE)N\F : 175%) 5 E 2 BiIE (3,351) (4,818)
Tax at the Mainland China statutory tax rate ¥z /R B K R VK E B R 25.0%
of 25.0% (2008: 33.0%) —TT)\F : 33.0%) T EZFHIE 10,393 14,487
Lower applicable tax rate enjoyed by the Group AEEEH CREBEATE (3,578) (3,402)
Estimated tax effect of income that are BEARBWA Z GG E
not subject to tax (1,391) (1,803)
Estimated tax effect of expenses that are not TS TE FE RT3 KB AN
deductible in determining taxable profit HBHRA< 2 g e 1,388 6,908
Estimated tax losses not recognised RIETER < [HaTTiIEE 8 800 465
Effect on deferred tax asset from origination and REREDERE8E 2
reversal of temporary differences BEFIBEE 2 & 2,541 (10,600)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on AN & B A R B K B 2 — A B
the distributable profits of a Group’s A A A 5 Ik s A 5% 45 A< TR 40 7
subsidiary in Mainland China -2 1,160 —
Estimated tax loss utilised from prior years NEFE BB AT THIEREE - (3,043)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of prior years &t LA{E £ [E Bl EATH IB(E 7 2L (2,401) (322)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s effective tax rate 1R A& E BB R =18 2
MBI (ER) 5,561 (2,128)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

10. Tax (continued)

During the 5th Session of the 10th National People’s Congress,
which was concluded on 16 March 2007, a new set of PRC
Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New Corporation Income Tax Law”)
was approved and became effective on 1 January 2008. The New
Corporate Income Tax Law introduces a wide range of changes
which included, but are not limited to, the unification of the income
tax rate for domestic-invested and foreign-invested enterprises
at 25%.

Pursuant to the notice on the Implementation Rules for Grandfather
Relief under the New Corporate Income Tax Law issued by the State
Council of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) on 26
December 2007, effective from 1 January 2008, the preferential tax
enjoyed by Unison Networking Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(“Unison”), a subsidiary of the Group operating in the PRC, is subject
to the annual renewal requirement. The existing preferential income
tax rate pertaining to Prosten Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(“Prosten SH”), a subsidiary of the Group operating in the PRC, will
gradually transit to the applicable tax rate of 25%.

Unison is approved as a High-New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”)
for a three-year period from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010.
Under the applicable New Corporate Income Tax Law, Unison can
enjoy the preferential tax rate of 15% for the period from 2008 to
2010 if it can satisfy the qualification for the HNTE throughout the
period. For the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008, Unison was
qualified as an HNTE.

For the year ended 31 March 2009, Prosten SH was subject to a
preferential tax rate of 18% (2008: 15%) and had unutilised tax
losses brought forward from prior years. Therefore, Prosten SH was
not subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax for the year.

10.

BIE (%)

FTEZEBARARXRASEFIREZHE (R
—ERLFZATARBER) T EPEDE
EMBEHE(FEEMRBHE]) EFHET
RZZEZENF-—A—BER - TEEMREHR
EBIA—RIER  BRETERHAER
HNEREFSI RS —R25% °

REBEHEARKME([HE ] BBER -F
ELFET AT ANERBEAR-_ZBZTNEF
—A-BRERZBARAECERSHEER
BERREBGIZABS  AEERBEL
BZMBARAEREXRMRSE(LE)BR
RRA([BEDFAEIBERXASFEN -
AEERPEKLLEZHBRARRESBRBH
M (EB)BRAR(RELE] SHERF
FHEEEMGHEEBEAERH K25

EEERABSTEMEE BT NEF
—A—RAREZT—ZTF+-_A=+—AH1"
RE=F  RIBER 2 EEMGEE
EER-_EENFE_ZT—ZTEEERHMHY
HEmMBEMEEZER  AERNZE M
AIZE 1% BERE -RNBETTNER
—ZEENFZA=+—BLEFE £E=FA
DI EMAE B -

BHE _ZTZTZANF=ZF=+—HItFE K=&
FEBEEREEI18%(—TT)\F : 15%) » I
EBREFEZEAMAERHEBEERE - Bt
REFEBNAFEZASINPECEMER -

<
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11.

12.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2009 includes a loss of approximately
HK$3,947,000 (2008: a loss of HK$19,587,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note 29(b)).

Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity Holders of
the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
HK$15,636,000 (2008: HK$26,487,000), and the weighted average
number of 597,548,973 (2008: 595,328,552) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2009 is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$15,636,000 (2008:
HK$26,487,000), less the fair value gain on derivative component of
convertible bonds of HK$4,827,000. The calculation of diluted
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2008 has not
included the potential effect of the deemed conversion of the
convertible bonds into ordinary shares during the year as it had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share for that year. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 634,971,984 (2008:
625,275,422) used in this calculation is the total of the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year as used in the basic earnings
per share calculation, the weighted average number of ordinary
shares on deemed exercise of all share options during the year
assuming issuance at no consideration of 7,423,011 (2008:
29,946,870), and deemed conversion of all convertible bonds
of 30,000,000.
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11.

12.

ARBERFRABGEREF

HE-_ZZAF=A=1+—HLEE  AQF
A ABIG4R G 5 F £ 15 518 493,947,000
BT (ZZTZT)\F : E51819,587,000% 7T) © I
ERAR Az B 75 Rk B 1 (fT5E29()) °

AAAESEREARBLGERER

ERERBATDEERAAALEBERTEEA
JiE {5 4F A %5 #15,636,00058 7T ( = T T )\ 4 ¢
26,487,000/ 7T ) & F A B 317 & AR 2 hngE T
9 £1507,5648 973 ik ( = F = )\ F : 595,328,552
f&)EHHE -

REBEE-_ZEZTNAF=A=+—HILFEE "
BEERAFNDBEARALTEEZFEA
JfE {5 4F A % 715,636,00058 7T ( = T ZT )\ 4 ¢
26,487,000 L) WA MR ESFITET AR
D2 AFEWRZL8270008 Tt E - HEZZE
ZENFZA=+—ALEEEREERF
A BT ESENFRARIELBRATRRBES
ALTRREBEEYE REAHYUZFER
EXRNEABREFLE - HEFAERANE
38 % A0 RE T 15 81634,971,984 % ( — T T )\ 4 :
625275,422/% ) Bt E G RE R BFKMAZ
FANEBRTEEREE  BEAEERER
FABEETEMERSRER T 2 E BN
807,423,011 % (ZFZ )\ F : 29,946,870
BR) AR AR REHF AR EE R M7 2
- 38 % h0 4 F 15 82 30,000,000 % = 8 FN o



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. ¥ - BERRXRE
Group E S
Office and
computer
Leasehold equipment,
building furniture and
in Mainland Leasehold fixtures
China improvements B2ZERE MK Motor
A B K HE RE - BR vehicles Total
ZHERTF MEEE R#E RE #at
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THR THR THR THER THER
31 March 2009 —ZEENE=A=1+—H
Cost: BAE :
At beginning of year F1 1,385 1,144 24,293 1,143 27,965
Additions NE - 3 1,191 2,079 3,273
Disposals HE - - (201) (699) (900)
Write-off 55 = - (11,428) - (11,428)
Exchange realignment [E i 2 - 20 234 11 265
At 31 March 2009 RZZEZNE
=A=+—H 1,385 1,167 14,089 2,534 19,175
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiHTERFEE :
and impairment:
At beginning of year F1 107 744 21,861 1,113 23,825
Provided for the year F R 35 268 1,558 455 2,316
Disposals HE - - (201) (699) (900)
Write-off s - - (11,176) - (11,176)
Exchange realignment fE 5 A& - 13 185 12 210
At 31 March 2009 RZZZNE
=A=+—-H 142 1,025 12,227 881 14,275
Net book value: BREEE :
At 31 March 2009 RZZZNE
=R=+—H 1,243 142 1,862 1,653 4,900
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 13. ¥ - BMERRE @
Group (continued) AEE (&)
Office and
computer
Leasehold equipment,
building furniture and
in Mainland Leasehold fixtures
China  improvements A% K E i Motor
NG IETN HE  BE-ER vehicles Total
ZHERF MERE KB "E Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHL FHT
31 March 2008 —EEN\F=ZH=1+—H
Cost: BAE :
At beginning of year ) 1,385 1,072 25,986 1,757 30,200
Additions NE - 45 1,021 - 1,066
Disposals HeE - - (93) - (93)
Write-off 54 — — (3,429) (652) (4,081)
Exchange realignment fE 5 A& — 27 808 38 873
At 31 March 2008 RZZBEN\E
=A=+—H 1,385 1,144 24,293 1,143 27,965
Accumulated depreciation Rt ERFEE :
and impairment:
At beginning of year F 47 72 422 23,337 1,637 25,468
Provided for the year FERNEE 35 287 1,459 0 1,871
Disposals k= - - 91) - 91)
Write-off ik — — (3,429 (652) (4,081)
Exchange realignment fE 5 A& - 35 585 38 658
At 31 March 2008 RZEENEF
=A=+—H 107 744 21,861 1,113 23,825
Net book value: BRERE :
At 31 March 2008 RZZTNEF
=A=+—8H 1,278 400 2,432 30 4,140
The Group’s leasehold building is held under a long term lease and is AEBZHEEEFURBHEOEFE LR F
situated in Mainland China. ABE o
The net book value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment AEBERBYBHEHEREZYME KELER
held under a finance lease included in the total amount of motor H2EAFERER-_ZEZTAF=ZA=1+—
vehicles at 31 March 2009 amounted to HK$460,000 (2008: Nil). H2 REAEI00008T (ZETNEFE 1 &) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

14. Investment Property 14. REYHE
Group
rEH
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EZhEF —ET)N\F
FTET FHET
Carrying amount at beginning of year RAFEERIBR 2 REE 2,408 —
Addition NE — 65
Transfer from non-current deposits EEEHIETREE S — 1,223
Exchange realignment bE 5 B 60 155
Fair value adjustment NEEEFE (580) 965
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HZKHEE 1,888 2,408
The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31 March 2009 by AEBZREMERBIEXSERGERD
Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited, an independent firm of THEBITAMABRARIKEITARAAR
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$1,888,000 (2008: MEEER-_ZTTNF=A=+—HEHA
HK$2,408,000) on an open market, existing use basis. 1,888,000/ 7T (ZZZT )\ & : 2,408,000/ 7T) °
The Group’s investment property is held under a long term lease and REB7HREMERBRABAOFTE - LR
is located at Room 807, Entrance 1, Level 7, Building 25, No. Yi 36, fR b R R R R P AMNE 23657255k 1
Dongzhimenwai Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC, for the BISEAOBTE - AEEEE M2 A% -
use as a residential unit.
The building ownership certificate of the Group’s investment property REEREMEZEEHRERZELEEER
was subsequently obtained in April 2009. —TEENFMARIE -
15. Interests in Subsidiaries 15. RB AR Z2Es=
Company
b N/NE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EBZhEF —TT)N\F
FTET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEmRRD - AR 27,445 27,445
Due from subsidiaries A NG 397,007 391,487
424,452 418,932
Impairment NN (393,850) (3983,850)
30,602 25,082

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
will not be repayable within the next twelve months from the balance
sheet date. The carrying amounts of the balances with subsidiaries

approximate to their fair values.

EKRHBARRAREER 2ERBEARN
BHEBAEFRRIR2EARER - MERR &S

HRZREEEEQATFEEMES -
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Year ended 31 March 2009 # & —EZEhF=A=+—HIFZ

15. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

15. RINB AT 2R (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2009 are as follows:

R-FEAE=A=+-A

BRAARZHBWAT :

P RAFEER

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

Percentage of
equity ownership

registration and ordinary share/ attributable to
operations registered capital the Company
Name HEMR ERE ERTERR  KAFAEMGER Principal activities
= EEME EMERZEHE BEEBSL FTEXK
Prosten (BVI) Limited* British Virgin Islands, US$21,025 100 Investment holding
limited liability company** 21,0253 7T REER
REBRUAS
BREEQR™
Prosten Technology Co. Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
Limited limited liability company 1,000,000 7T REER
RERMBBERAA BE  BEREEAT
Prolink Technology Limited Hong Kong, HK$5 100 Investment holding
BENEHE B R A A limited liability company 578 7T B R
5%  BEREEAA
Worldly Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 100 Investment holding
Mz AR A A limited liability company 10,0005 7T 158 R
BA  BEREAAA
Prosten Technology PRC, wholly-foreign-owned US$3,500,000 100 Provision of solution
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* enterprise with 3,500,000 7T integration and
REZRBIAR limited liability wireless mobile
(EB)BRAF" FE - INEEE value added services
BREMERZE REBARTRES
KGR e IS AR
Unison Networking PRC, wholly-foreign-owned US$1,500,000 100 Provision of solution

Services (Shanghai) enterprise with 1,500,000 7© integration and
Co., Ltd.* limited liability wireless mobile
455 A8 A BT AR 7S REC INEEE value added services
(EB)BRAF BREMERE REBATRES
K a8 % g 38 @ AR 7%

* The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries were not audited by * B EH B AR 2 A IS FRE I IEAR T K

Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst & Young

global network.

= The subsidiary’s place of incorporation is British Virgin Islands and it is

operated in Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

15. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

Other than Prosten (BVI) Limited, all other subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

15.

R B2 R 2 s (%)

% Prosten (BVI) Limited #h -
HEARQREERE -

PrB EA M8 QA

EERR LRMIARAMBRREIER
ERAEFEZEEIBRAEEAEEFEZE
EMAZARBMBRA - EEZRA - JIH
HfBARZFHBEHSTREENILE

16. Available-for-sale Investments 16. AIHHERE
Group
rEH
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EENF —ETNF
FTHET T T
Club debentures, at cost ES R 796 786
As at the balance sheet date, club debentures were stated at cost as REEH  @EFERAYE  REAT
the Directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be LHRZRABELERG EERALFEER
measured reliably with the lack of frequent transactions in the market. BEASAE AEEEENTABRLEZ
The Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future. EE5 -
17. Deferred Tax 17. EEF B

The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as follows:

BEEFRBREERNFAZIEHMT ¢

Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE
Group RAEH Losses available for
offsetting against future
taxable profits
FEIK 85 R R FERBUR R
ZEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EENF —EENF
FET FAT
At beginning of year RN Z G 1R B 10,600 —
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the FRRIBImE (HR) FTAZ
income statement during the year (note 10) EEFRIE (FFE10) (2,541) 10,600
Exchange realignment bE 5 B 318 —
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 8,377 10,600
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Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

17. Deferred Tax (continued)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as
follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

17. EEFIE (&)

BEERBRERFAZESHWT

EERBEE

94

Group REE Withholding taxes
SRk
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
—EENF —EENEF
THER FHET
At beginning of year R S B 1R _ _
Deferred tax charged to the income FARERRNBR CELERIE
statement during the year (note 10) (K$sE10) 1,160 =
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,160 —

Pursuant to the New Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between China and the respective
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

During the year, the Group has charged HK$1,160,000 (2008: Nil) of
deferred tax to the income statement for withholding taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of a subsidiary of the
Group established in the PRC. At 31 March 2009, there was no
significant unrecognised deferred tax liability (2008: Nil) for taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax should
such amounts be remitted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 # 2 —EZEANF=A=+—HILFEZF

18. Trade Receivables 18. EWER
Group
KE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—2EALE —TEN\F
FET T T
Trade receivables JiE Uk BR 7R 25,216 82,687
Impairment allowances VERIERE i (7,716) (40,326)
17,500 42,361

The Group’s trade receivables, which generally have credit terms of
1 month to 3 months pursuant to the provisions of the relevant
contracts, are recognised and carried at the original invoice amount,
and an estimate of impairment allowance for trade receivables is
made and deducted when collection of the full amount is no longer
probable. There is a significant concentration of credit risk as over
83% (2008: 72%) of the balance represented a receivable from one
customer. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. The carrying
amounts of trade receivables approximate to their fair values.

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of allowances
and based on the invoice date, is as follows:

BEBBEEHNZHATE  NEB 2 EKER—
MHEBEI1ERAEIEAZEER - BEURERRIZ
RIEEZCETUABRRIIE - WEDAEE
WEHEZFSERELEKREFBRERER
o TUAR - ASEFEEREFEE
Rk RE BB (ZEZNE : 72%) Z
ERRBEW—BEP ZHIE - EIERZKDE
B BWEREREREQAFEBEMRE

NS B R (IR BB ) RIRIBE R A
HZBRE DT

Group
KEHE
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
—EThF —ZEZTN\F
FExT FAET
0 to 3 months 0Z=3f@ A 17,489 42,246
4 to 6 months 4Z=61E A 11 115
17,500 42,361
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

18. Trade Receivables (continued) 18.

The movements in impairment allowance for trade receivables are as

FE W B K ()

MR FORER B2 E BT

follows:

Group

rEH
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’'000
—EEAF —ZETN\FE
FHET F& T
At beginning of year RN E B IR B 40,326 36,603
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) ERERREEE (iE6) 366 3,203
Amount written off as uncollectible 455K R [B] i 8 2 < 58 (33,208) —
Exchange realignment [ 5, A & 232 520
At 31 March R=A=+—H 7,716 40,326

The above impairment allowances for trade receivables are
allowances for individually impaired trade receivables with a carrying
amount of HK$7,716,000 (2008: HK$40,326,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers whose balances have
been overdue for a long time. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to
be impaired is as follows:

bt i U BR 3R 2 R (B B E A T E B B R (E TR
UG BR SR 2 Bl - HBRTE(E A7,716,000/% 7T
(ZZ T )\ : 40,326,000 7T ) ° @RI E B 1E
BREREE REEAHNRZEFER -
AEBVERZSEHFTEEMNERRNKIE
PHEE R = -

PRESERE 2 BRRFZ RO AOT ¢

Group

KEH
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EEAEF —EENFE
FET T T
Neither past due nor impaired I 4% 38 # s R (B 13,910 41,298
Less than 1 month past due B H D1 (8 A = =
1 to 3 months past due B@iA1 231 A 3,579 948
4 to 6 months past due BaH4=6(E A 11 115
17,500 42,361

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to several
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

18. Trade Receivables (continued) 18. EEWERF (&)
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number B8 H B MR B 2 FE UG IB D B8 B IR AN &
of independent customers that have a good repayment record with BEVRIFEELHI2BEVREFLARM - B
the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors of the Company NAEZER KRB EERE BRZEER
are of the opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary in JEEBEWESEANEH  BNBEAFEH
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change Y - MEEHZEERIERBERE &
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. B EgZE AR A EAERMEEE
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements iz B ZHE M o
over these balances.
19. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables 19. EARE FTEekHEMEKRRE
Group Company
rE KAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—EBNF —ET)N\EF —EEAEF —EENFE
FET FHET TER T
Prepayments T 5RIA 596 563 141 211
Deposits and other receivables 5] & K H 1th & U ZI8 5,228 5,686 — 196
5,824 6,249 141 407
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial MELAEERE @ HIRE - 5T A L4
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which HeRMEERTHYEIREELREZE
there was no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of WHKIBB @ - AN FRIE ~ 5T & K H AR KR
prepayments, deposits and other receivables approximate to their Hey FEEAEAFEBERAS °
fair values.
20. Equity Investments at Fair Value through Profit or 20. EAFEEIIEREEREEEZR

Loss

EERE

Group

AEME
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EBENF —EZ)\F
FTET FHET

Hong Kong listed equity investments, B8 ETRERE

at market value EmiE 1,910 3,160
Others Hih 1 2
1,911 3,162
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

20. Equity Investments at Fair Value through Profit or

21.

Loss (continued)

The above equity investments at 31 March 2009 and 2008, upon
initial recognition, were designated by the Group as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss as they are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis and information about
the investments are provided on that basis to the Group’s key
management personnel.

Due from Directors

Particulars of amounts due from the Directors, disclosed pursuant to
Section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as
follows:

20. RAFEEIGREESKRER 2R
ERE #)

FHR —_ETAFEFR -_TENE=ZF=1+—
Bz BREZEERVIAERE  HAEEEE
BEATEBEINEREEREREZS/E
E RAAZSEREZEERRERBEHEA
TEEEEN G MBEBAKRE Z2EBHIRE
ZEERNAEEZEEZERABRME -

21, EWEE2HRE

RIBEEERA GO EI6BERKREZ BEES
RIEZFFBNAT

Maximum

amount
31 March outstanding 1 April
2009 during the year 2008
—EELE ERRE —TT)\F
Name i ZA=+—-8 HAEESH mA—A
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET FET FHET
Mr. Yip Heon Wai HEm#ErE 434 434 67
Mr. Yip Heon Keung e e 422 675 75
856 1,109 142

The amounts due from Directors are unsecured, interest-free and are
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the amounts due
from Directors approximate to their fair values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

22. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Deposits

2 BHEeRRATEEYRECERER

Group Company
rE PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
“EEAE ZEZEENF ZBBEhE ZZETN\F
FTET FHET FTHET FET
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTA S 38,557 27,199 11 2,240
Time deposits & BF 43,370 6,003 = 6,003
81,927 33,202 11 8,243
Less: Pledged time deposits: W BERERFER
Pledged for bank facilities FHERITEE/ELE R (156) - - -
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEY 81,771 33,202 11 8,243

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances and time
deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) amounted
to HK$80,837,000 (2008: HK$24,460,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The carrying
amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and the pledged deposits
approximate to their fair values.

AEEREEBUARB(TAREDEZ
R & KR 174 8% & E B3 15 51 480,837,000 7T
(ZZEZT)\4F : 244600007 T) - AREERT]
BEREBAEMER  HWRESRBRKREZIN
EEEGD  UREE SERMESER
EAEEEAEZBERBETIERSE
BZRTBEARE LB AHMEE -

RTFFRESARTERNEEEZFY
MEFE - BHEHFRSHIBEIM[MA T
E BIAEEERZREFTEME @ Lk
BERcEBEMEFERMEGE - RITERT
BN HRYEBRBECBEZIEERFRIT B
eREFEYUARE BRF R ZREER
HERAFEERES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 # & —EZEhF=A=+—HIFZ

23. Trade Payables 23. ERERX
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the balance shest date, REER  BEIHBNRAE 2B RRER
based on the payment due date, is as follows: AW :
Group
rE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
—ZEEAFE —ZTTN\F
FE T FHT
Over 12 months HBiE121E A 2,838 2,840
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate to their fair ERNEFOEEEEREATFEERS - BN
values. The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally RATEE - —MRIBAANEE -
settled on 3-month terms.
24. Other Payables, Deposits Received and Accruals 24, EMENSRE - RIS REFRE
Group Company
rE N
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
—EZhE ZZTENF ZEBEBEAFE —TTNF
FExT T T FE T FHET
Other payables H fth & A 5k B 3,557 5,274 = —
Deposits received =L A 1,107 1,081 - —
Accruals FEEt 1B 12,098 3,318 2,961 1,420
16,762 9,673 2,961 1,420
Other payables, deposits received and accruals are non-interest- HtmEMNKIE  BWET € REF KB A TE
bearing and have an average term of three months. The carrying B FTHRARHA=MA - EthEMRE -
amounts of the other payables, deposits received and accruals BT e REFRBEZEREEE A FEE
approximate to their fair values. HE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

25. Finance Lease Payables

As at 31 March 2009, the Group leases a motor vehicle under a
finance lease and the total future minimum lease payments under the
non-cancellable finance lease and their present values were as

25. MBHEERNRIAE

REZZZNF=ZA=+—H AEEREH
BHEMRRERE  MRETAREYHHE
ERHRENZRERENRERBLERE

follows: T
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BIEREE N BREEENRZEE
Group REE 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—EENEF —EENF —EENF ZET)NF
FExT FAET FEx FAT
Amounts payable: JE R
Within one year —FR 159 — 130 —
In the second year F4F 159 — 145 —
In the third to fifth years, FZEERF
inclusive (BHEERERF) 53 — 52 —
Total minimum finance FERGEAEM K
lease payments FEgE) 371 — 327 —
Future finance charges KRB 75 (44) —
Total net finance lease B 7570 & e BUE
payables F R 327 —
Portion classified as NEARBEBZ
current liabilities B (130) —
Non-current portion R E B 197 —

26.

Convertible Bonds and Embedded Financial

Derivative

On 30 April 2007, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Tallmany Enterprises
Limited (“Tallmany”) and China Broadband Capital Partners, L.P.
(“CBC”) for the issuance of five-year zero-coupon convertible bonds
(the “Convertible Bonds”) in the principal amount of HK$28,800,000.

26. IRKREFRBAXNESHIITETR

1) -

RZZTZLtFWMA=FH  ARARBEITAE
% & %8 528,800,000/ ;T 2~ A F HI T B A
& EH ([FI AR E % |) ETallmany Enterprises
Limited ([ Tallmany |) % China Broadband Capital
Partners, L.P.([CBC ) 7T 37 3R & # & ([ R 18
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26.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

Convertible Bonds and Embedded Financial
Derivative (continued)

On 6 June 2007, the Convertible Bonds were issued by the
Company to Tallmany in the principal amount of HK$28,800,000 (the
“Principal Amount”) pursuant to the terms set out in the Deed Poll
dated 6 June 2007, which also contain the Terms and Conditions of
the Convertible Bonds (the “Terms and Conditions”). There was no
movement in the number of the Convertible Bonds during the year
ended 31 March 2009. The Convertible Bonds may, upon exercise of
the conversion rights attaching to them, convert into new ordinary
shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.96 per
share (subject to adjustments) at any time during a five-year period
commencing from the date of first issue of the Convertible Bonds. If
the holder of the Convertible Bonds exercises the conversion rights
attached to the Convertible Bonds in full at the initial conversion price
of HK$0.96 per share, a total of 30,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company will be issued. If the holder of the Convertible Bonds
exercises the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds in
full at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.50 per share, a total of
57,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company will be issued.

On the other hand, the holder of the Convertible Bonds will have the
right to redeem the Convertible Bonds early before their maturity
date on 5 June 2012 (the “Maturity Date”) if one (or more) of the
events of default defined in Clause 10 of the Terms and Conditions
(“Events of Default”) occur(s). If one (or more) of the Events of Default
occur, the holder of the Convertible Bonds may by notice in writing
require the Company to redeem the Convertible Bonds at 125% of
the Principal Amount (the “Early Redemption Amount”), and the Early
Redemption Amount must be paid within 10 days of such notice in
writing, as provided in Clause 8.2 of the Terms and Conditions.

Any Convertible Bonds not already converted or redeemed will be
redeemed on the Maturity Date at 100% of the Principal Amount.

Upon initial recognition, the Convertible Bonds issued were split into
liability and derivative components. On the issuance of the
Convertible Bonds, the excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component was recognised as the
liability component and was carried as non-current liabilities. The fair
value of the derivative component was estimated at the issuance
date and at 31 March 2009 with reference to the valuation performed
by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited (“Grant Sherman”), an
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, using a binomial
option pricing model and the change in fair value of that component
of HK$4,827,000 (2008: HK$7,745,000) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

26. Convertible Bonds and Embedded Financial

Derivative (continued)

Under the Subscription Agreement, the Company was required to
procure repayment of certain trade receivables (the “Trade
Receivables”) by 31 May 2007. Repayment was not procured by 31
May 2007 and a written supplemental agreement to the Subscription
Agreement dated 6 June 2007 was signed by the Company with
Tallmany and CBC (the “Supplemental Agreement”). Under the terms
of the Supplemental Agreement, the time for the Company to
procure repayment of the Trade Receivables was purported to be
extended to 30 September 2007. However, repayment of the Trade
Receivables was not procured by 30 September 2007 and as such,
out of an abundance of caution, for the financial year ended 31
March 2008, the Principal Amount was reclassified as a current
liability together with a 25% premium over the Principal Amount (the
total of these 2 amounts is equal to the Early Redemption Amount
defined above). The Early Redemption Amount continues to be
recognised in this financial year as a current liability.

However, it is the Company’s position that the holder of the
Convertible Bonds is not legally entitled to early redemption of the
Convertible Bonds based on a failure to procure repayment of the
Trade Receivables by 31 May 2007 and/or 30 September 2007 (the
“Alleged Subscription Agreement Breach”).

On 1 December 2008, the Company received from Tallmany a
written demand for early redemption of the Convertible Bonds at the
Early Redemption Amount on the basis of the Alleged Subscription
Agreement Breach. On 10 March 2009, the Company received from
Tallmany the Writ of Summons issued by the Registry of High Court
(the “High Court”), with Tallmany named as the Plaintiff, which claims
against the Company the sum of HK$36,000,000, being the Early
Redemption Amount. On 23 March 2009, the Company lodged with
the High Court the Acknowledgement of Service stating therein that
the Company intends to contest these proceedings. Subsequently,
the Company filed its Defence with the High Court on 20 May 2009.

26 ARBREZFRBEAXNESHITETAR

(%)

BERERE  ARRBRESTERER
([EEERDE-_ZZT+tFRAA=1+—HE
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H R-_ZTNE=ZA+H ARAREERH
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RERRE  RTAARBBAREARER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

26. Convertible Bonds and Embedded Financial
Derivative (continued)

Having regard to the financial position of the Group, the Company is
of the view that if the High Court finds in favour of the holder of the
Convertible Bonds and it is entitled to exercise its right to early
redemption, the cash flow of the Group will be reduced. However,
the Group will have sufficient working capital for running its business
in the ordinary course.

The movements in the liability and derivative components of the

26 ARBREZFRBEAXNESHITETAR
(%)

BREBAEB ZMBRR  RRRRBARMS
PRH AT E ST E ABR - BEEREITE
RABEEESD AKEZRESRAEERD °
R AEBERKABRRLEESKLEHRA
e

BB EFZBERTET AR IRNFARALZ

Convertible Bonds during the year are as follows: BEHMT :
2009 —EEHE
Liability Derivative
component component Total
BTy TEIARS st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZENFHA—H 36,000 8,619 44,619
Fair value gain recognised FRERZAFEE
during the year W= - (4,827) (4,827)
At 31 March 2009 RZZEZENF=A=+—H 36,000 3,792 39,792
2008 —TT)N\F
Liability Derivative
component component Total
BE#S TEIAHS #BEt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET FHET
Convertible Bonds issued RZZEZTLFRANRH
on 6 June 2007 BT 2 AR E S 12,436 16,364 28,800
Imputed interest (note 7) ZEFBE (MFE7) 23,564 — 23,564
Fair value gain recognised FRERZAFEE
during the year U 5 — (7,745) (7,745)
At 31 March 2008 RZZEZENF=ZA=+—H 36,000 8,619 44,619
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 # 2 —EZEANF=A=+—HILFEZF

27. Share Capital 27. BRA&
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Shares vy —EEhRE ZETNF
FExT FHT
Authorised: ERE
2,500,000,000 (2008: 2,500,000,000) BREEC10E T2 R
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 2,500,000,000% (=& Z )\ F :
2,500,000,000 % ) 250,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRERE :
597,675,000 (2008: 597,275,000) FREECI0E L T @R
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 597,675,000% (ZZT T )\ F :
597,275,000 % ) 59,767 59,727

A summary of the transactions in the Company’s issued share capital
during the year is as follows:

FRETZARBEETRAZZHMENLT ¢

Number of
shares in Share
issue Issued premium
BT capital account Total
ROBE BBITRE ROBER HaE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHET THET FHET
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZTLFMA—H 592,375,000 59,237 348,159 407,396
Share options exercised 1715 B AR A 4,900,000 490 649 1,139
At 31 March 2008 and R-ZTE)\F
1 April 2008 =RA=+T—HkK
—EENFHA—H 597,275,000 59,727 348,808 408,535
Share options exercised 1T 1F B A A 400,000 40 126 166
At 31 March 2009 R-ZZEZTNF
—A=+—H 597,675,000 59,767 348,934 408,701

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the subscription rights
attaching to 200,000 and 200,000 share options were exercised
at subscription prices of HK$0.41 and HK$0.417 per share,
respectively, resulting in the issuance of 400,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before the related
expenses, of approximately HK$166,000.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are included in note
28 to the financial statements.

HE-_ZTTNAF=ZA=Z+—BLFE"
200,000 17 }% 200,000 17 & A #E FT M R EEEE 5
A A R E B & B%0.41 7 T RO4M7HE LT -
EH400,0000% & EE0A0 T 2 T@mA% - £
RI0BR AR BB S AT - DA 4B 3R € X (B 49166,000
FETLEEAT ©

B

ARl BREFEFBHNTEHREN
F28
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28. Share Option Schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The Company’s
original share option scheme which was approved by the
shareholders on 7 March 2000 (the “Old Scheme”) was terminated
and replaced by a new share option scheme approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 9 April 2002 (the “New Scheme”). The options granted
under the Old Scheme remain exercisable within their respective
exercise periods.

(a)

(b)

Old Scheme

Eligible participants of the Old Scheme include the Company’s
Directors and employees of the Group. Under the Old Scheme,
the Board was authorised, at its absolute discretion, to grant
options to the Company’s Directors and employees of the
Group to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company. The
Old Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the listing of the Company’s shares on the
GEM of the Exchange on 28 March 2000.

New Scheme

The New Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 23 April 2002. Eligible participants of the New
Scheme include all Directors and employees of the Group,
suppliers, customers, consultants who provided services to the
Group, shareholders of the subsidiaries of the Group and joint
venture partners. Under the New Scheme, the Directors may,
at their sole discretion, grant to any eligible participants options
to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company at the highest
of () the closing price of shares of the Company on the GEM
as stated in the Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of the offer of grant; or (ii) the average closing price of
the shares of the Company on the GEM as stated in the
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share. The offer of a grant of
options may be accepted within 21 days from the date of the
offer. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option. The exercise period of
the options granted is determinable by the Directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends in any
event not later than 10 years from the respective date when
the share options are granted, subject to the provisions for
early termination thereof.
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Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

28. Share Option Schemes (continued)

(b)

New Scheme (continued)

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 July
2006 (the “AGM”), an ordinary resolution was passed by the
shareholders to approve the refreshing of the 10% general limit
on the grant of share options under the New Scheme.

The total number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Scheme is an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of the AGM.

The maximum number of shares to be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the New Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the relevant class of shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends

28. BBRAERTE ()

(b)

Hat & (%)

EXARRAR_ZZRFLA-_+ARAE
TZRRBEFRAE(TRRBEFAE])
- BRRBE-BEBARZR HLE
BAR B R AT &R B A 2 10% — R
ER -

RAREBEHT KR L B BRERET
Ema i # kBT RMOAER  HEAE
HERBERRBFRAGETERZA
REIBE BTN 210% °

B AR 32 8 5T 8 Ko 7 5% B (4 L B A 4
AHEIPTIR H RS TITE 2B W R EST
B2 ERBEITEMmAS TR ERETL
Bh&keHE  AEATESBBTHER
T2 AR AA BB D Z30% °

BREYAE TRE AR S HNR

RRE LREMER -

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Old Scheme
during the year:

FRREBEEFEZHRITEBRENT

2009 2008
—EENF —ET)N\F
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price  of options exercise price of options
IERGTEE BREHE MEFTHTERE BRESE
HKS$ per share ’000 HK$ per share ’000
B (ER) T 6 BT (8R) T
At beginning of year RAFEERBE 0.40 25,365 0.40 27,365
Exercised during the year FRITEE 0.40 — 0.40 (2,000)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 0.40 25,365 0.40 25,365
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28. Share Option Schemes (continued) 28. BMRESTE (®)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options under REER  BEESFEZHEARATEBEREZ
the Old Scheme outstanding as at the balance sheet date are TEBRITERET
as follows:
2009
—EZTAF
Number of options Exercise price*
’000 HK$ per share
BREZE TEE" Exercise period
T4 B (8R) TEHIBR
25,365 0.40 22 August 2001 to 21 August 2011

—E2E-F/\A=-t=AEFE
—2-—-%N\A=t+-—A

2008
—ETN\F
Number of options Exercise price”
’000 HK$ per share
fE LS B T{EE Exercise period
T145 BT (FR%) TR EARR
25,365 0.40 22 August 2001 to 21 August 2011
—EEF—FNA=-+=H=
—E——%FN\HA=t+—H
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case * ERETEEIRBHERIANETHARAR
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s BRARE A AL E) T AAE -

share capital.
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Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

28. Share Option Schemes (continued) 28. BREFE (@

The following share options were outstanding under the New FR CRBEFGTEIZ MARITEEBRELDT -
Scheme during the year:

2009 2008
—EEBAF —ET)NF
Weighted Weighted

average Number average Number

exercise price of options exercise price of options

IEFHTEE BREHE NMETHTEE BREZHE

HKS$ per share ’000 HK$ per share ’000

BT (8KR) T4 B (FR) T

At beginning of year AN [E G IR B 0.318 22,230 0.162 17,330

Granted during the year FREFEH 0.410 14,800 0.447 24,000

Exercised during the year FRITEE 0.414 (400) 0.117 (2,900)

Lapsed during the year FRKRK - - 0.379 (1,200)

Forfeited during the year F AR 0.170 (200) 0.379 (15,000)

At 31 March R=A=+—H 0.355 36,430 0.318 22,230
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share RERNETE2EREMS RITERBZ
options exercised during the year was HK$0.68 (2008: HK$1.25). INHEFHKREROSETL(ZZTEZENF - 1.25

HBIT) °
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28.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

Share Option Schemes (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding under the New Scheme as at that balance sheet date

are as follows:

2009
ZEENF
Number of options Exercise price*
’000 HKS$ per share
BRERE TEE"
RNV BT (ER)
800 0.260
1,650 0.100
7,380 0.170
1,500 0.878
2,500 0.600
9,000 0.410
200 0.100
2,000 0.100
1,000 0.380
5,000 0.396
5,000 0.410
200 0.410
200 0.417
36,430
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28. BBRAERTE ()

REZER  REFABZHAITEBREZ
TTEERITERARIT ¢

Exercise period

TR

22 May 2002 to 21 May 2012
—RE-_fREA-+-RAE-T--FHA=-1+—A
26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014
—EENF=RA-+ARHBE-ZE-NFE=ZA=1+EHH
10 May 2006 to 9 May 2016
—EEXRFHEBATHE-ZE-—XRFHEANAB

23 November 2007 to 22 November 2017

—EE+F+-—HB=-+=HAZE=2—+tF+-HA=+=H

2 January 2008 to 1 January 2018
—EENF-BR-HE-ZE-N\F—H—H

3 April 2008 to 2 April 2018

—EE N \FHUB=HE-ZT-/\FWAZ=-H

26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014
—EENF=A-+ARAHE-ZE-NFE=A=-1+FHH
24 June 2005 to 23 June 2015
—EERRFARAC-THBE=-ZE-—HEFRA=-T=H
29 June 2006 to 28 June 2016
—EEXRFARAZTABE=ZZE—XRFRAZ=ZTN\H
1 October 2008 to 5 July 2017
—EEN\F+HB—-HE=-ZE—tHFEtAEH

3 April 2008 to 2 April 2018
—EEN\FHNBA=HE-ZE-N\FWMA=H

3 April 2008 to 2 April 2018

—EE N \FHNB=HE-ZT-/\FWEAZ=-H

3 June 2008 to 2 June 2018
—EEN\FARA=HE=-ZE-N\FEXRAZH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

Share Option Schemes (continued)

2008
—TENE
Number of options Exercise price*
’000 HK$ per share
FAESE 1T (E"
T BT (FR)
800 0.260
1,650 0.100
7,580 0.170
1,500 0.878
2,500 0.600 B
200 0.100
2,000 0.100
1,000 0.380
5,000 0.396
22,230
* The exercise prices of the share options are subject to adjustment in case

of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s
share capital.

The fair value of share options granted during the year was
HK$3,986,000 (2008: HK$6,864,000). Including the share options
granted in prior years, total share option expense of HK$4,089,000
(2008: HK$1,556,000) was recognised by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2009.

28. BBRAERTE ()

Exercise period

1TE AR

22 May 2002 to 21 May 2012

T EE_FRAA-_+-_RAE-_E——FAA-+—H
26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014
—EENF=A-_+AAHE-_ZE—NWNF=A=-+HH
10 May 2006 to 9 May 2016
—EERFRATHRE=ZE—X"FRANA

23 November 2007 to 22 November 2017
TE+F+—A=-+=AEZ=_F—+tF+—A=+=H
2 January 2008 to 1 January 2018
—EENF—HA-_HE-_ZEZ—N\F—HF—H

26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014
—ETNF=A -+ AAAEE—NWF=RA=+HAH
24 June 2005 to 23 June 2015
—EERFEARA-tWBE-_ZT—AFE~A-+=H
29 June 2006 to 28 June 2016
—EEREANAZTAEEZZE—XR"FEA~NAZ-+/\H
1 October 2008 to 5 July 2017
—EEN\F+A—HE=ZE—tFtAAH

- BRREITEE R BERRAFETHARA
PR E A XL ) T LA -

RE R 2 B8 I i A 7 B8 53,986,000/% 7T
(ZZZ)\4F : 6,864,000/ 7T) * st RN BHESE
EREZERE AEEREEZE_ZTTAF
A=+ ALFERERERERLHE
4,089,000/ 7 (ZZEZ N\ 4F : 1,556,000 ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

28. Share Option Schemes (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year
was estimated as at the date of grant, with reference to the valuation
performed by Grant Sherman, using a binomial option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

BRESE |

FAMREAEREEZBRENATEE
Be2EREERA_AABRECERAR
R BHETHG YA RZEBEREN
BB GERRGEE - TRIBZEXMAEA
AR

2009 2008
—EENE —EBEENF
Dividend yield (%) B B = (% 0 0

Expected volatility (%)
Historical volatility (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%)

)
78 5K 1 (%)
JEE 5208 1 (%)
42 82 M) 2 (%)

Weighted average share price (HK$) niEEGIEE (Bit)

134.81 - 160.08
134.81 - 160.08
2.656 - 3.153
0.38 - 0.415

106.92 - 156.09
106.92 - 156.09
3.385 - 4.820
0.39-0.85

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be
the actual outcome.

For equity-settled share-based payments with parties other than
employees, the Group has rebutted the presumption that the fair
values of the services received can be estimated reliably as in the
opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the services cannot be
reliably measured. Accordingly, the Group measured the services
received from these parties, with reference to the fair values of the
share options granted using the binomial option pricing model, at the
date these parties rendered related services to the Group.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

The 400,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the
issue of 400,000 ordinary shares of the Company, an addition of
issued share capital of HK$40,000 and share premium of
approximately HK$126,000 (before related expenses), as further
detailed in note 27 to the financial statements.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 25,365,000 and
36,430,000 share options outstanding under the Old Scheme and
the New Scheme, respectively. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 61,795,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of HK$6,179,500 and
share premium of HK$16,896,500 (before related expenses).
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G4 - 40000010 BE R HEEATE - BB EAT
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28. Share Option Schemes (continued)

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had an aggregate of 61,795,000 share options outstanding under the

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 #

28. BBRAERTE ()

#atal

Rz EPBRRE

HOERH  RIEE

E_EFAFZA=+—HIFE

SR EI R

KA AA A 61,795,000 & & 17 F

Old Scheme and the New Scheme, the underlying shares in respect of
which represented approximately 10.34% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

ZRBBRE . B 2 RBEROEARR

BB #1T{ £10.34% °

AIRNE

29. Reserves 20. f#fE
(@) Group @ &£
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements REBPRAEERINEERE 2HEELE
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the MEBBHBEANGEEZEHRET -
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, a portion of REFRBEEIERTE  AEBERF
the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which are registered in el S /N D= (o | N = %
the PRC has been transferred to the statutory reserve fund EEEHREES  FRAREZREDNE
which is restricted as to use. B 1)
(b) Company (b) A27F
Share Share
premium option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
BRGHRER BRERE ZETE#E &gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FAT TAT TAT
At 1 April 2007 R-ZEELFMWA—H 348,159 1,204 (404,015) (54,652)
Loss for the year FAEE = = (19,587)  (19,587)
Issue of shares EITIR D 649 — — 649
Equity-settled share IV g i
option arrangements P e 2 BE — 1,556 — 1,556
Transfer of share option B A% A SR AR
reserve upon the lapse ERERE
of share options — (227) 227 -
At 31 March 2008 RZZEZENFE
=A=+-8 348,808 2,533 (423,375)  (72,034)
Loss for the year FREIE = = (3,947) (3,947)
Issue of shares TR D 126 — — 126
Equity-settled share UEZEEZ
option arrangements B IS W & BE — 4,089 — 4,089
Transfer of share option B PR AEE 5 0 AT B 8
reserve on the forfeited BRERE
share options = a7) 17 —
At 31 March 2009 RZZEZNF
=—A=+—H 348,934 6,605 (427,305) (71,766)

REMBERERAR —ZEAFER
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Year ended 31 March 2009 # & —EZEhF=A=+—HIFZ

29. Reserves (continued)

(b)

Company (continued)

U

(i)

(i)

Under the Companies Law (2001 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to its shareholders provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

As at 31 March 2009, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company had no reserves available for distribution to
shareholders.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will be transferred to the share premium account
when the related options are exercised, and will be
transferred to accumulated losses should the related
options expire or be forfeited.

30. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Major non-cash transactions

U)

(i)

During the year, the Group has written back those long
outstanding trade payables of HK$73,000 (2008: HK$5,887,000)
in the financial statements. In the opinion of the Directors,
those trade payables have been outstanding for over a long
period of time, the likelihood that the Group would result in a
significant outflow of resources is highly not probable.

During the year, the Group entered into a finance lease
arrangement in respect of property, plant and equipment with a
total capital value at the inception of the lease of HK$420,000
(2008: Nil).
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31. Commitments 31. &E
(a) Operating lease arrangements (@) KEHEZH
The Group leases certain of its office properties and motor AEBREKEHETHHEEES T
vehicles under operating lease arrangements. Leases NREMERAE - KEEEEAME
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to HMEHA—FE=F1T%-
three years.
At 31 March 2009, the Group had total future minimum lease N—BEBAF=A=1+—8 K&EER
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due B E A E AR AT 8
as follows: ZARKEHEENRLRELT -
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EEAE —ZTETNF
FExT FAT
Land and buildings: T RIEF
Within one year —F R 4,415 2,991
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EZERF (RIEEEMTF) 2,859 294
7,274 3,285
Motor vehicles: A
Within one year —FR 22 20
7,296 3,305

(b)

Capital commitments

At 31 March 2009, the Group had capital commitments of
HK$115,000 (2008: Nil), contracted but not provided for,
in respect of leasehold improvements for the Group’s
office premises.

The Company did not have any significant commitments as at the

balance sheet date (2008: Nil).

(b) EARFEIE
RZZEZAE=A=+—8 "&£EH
BAEERAEEF2HAEMEREEZ
B ET 4918 8 R B < & A #JE 5115,000
BIL(ZEENF &) -

ARBARBEERAYEBEMERNERE(ZFTEN
FE) -
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Year ended 31 March 2009 82 —EZENF=H=+—HIFFE

32. Related Party Transactions

(@

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
had no other related party transactions during the year. The
related party transactions entered into by the Group for the

year ended 31 March 2008 were as follows:

2. FREAETRS

@)

BRUBBREMEHREZZSFHE
ALTR B RERIN » REBRF AL E
HEMEALRS BE_ZTTN\F
ZA=t—HULEEFE AEEGHETT
JIEREBEBALRS :

2008

Notes HK$'000

—2ENE

B 52 FHETT

Rental expenses paid ENHEeRAX (i) 260

Impairment allowance for trade receivables JFE 8 BR RO (B B (ii) 3,203

Notes: s

(i) The rentals were paid in respect of the Group’s leased motor (i) EEHS IR ASEER—ABAEARME
vehicles to a related company, of which a shareholder of the related ERBEMmMXA - sz EQRRETIRE

company is the sister-in-law of Mr. Yip Heon Ping, a former Director
of the Company who retired during the year ended 31 March 2008.
The Directors of the Company have confirmed that the monthly
rentals were calculated with reference to the then prevailing open

market rental value.

(ii) An impairment allowance for trade receivables was made against the
outstanding balance from a debtor, of which one of the shareholders
is the father-in-law of Mr. Yip Heon Ping, a former Director of the
Company who retired during the year ended 31 March 2008.

Details of compensation for key management personnel, who
are the executive Directors of the Company, are included in

note 8 to the financial statements.
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33. Financial Instruments by Category 33. BrEHEsz2EMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REER 2SI AEZERBENT :
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
2009 Group
—EENF RE
Financial assets Financial
SREE assets at fair
value through
profit or loss Available-
BRAFEE for-sale
S BR & Loans and financial
EIEER receivables assets
EEZ BEXR At E Total
SREE FE W 1B SREE et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FE T FET FExT
Available-for-sale investments A ¢t H E 5 & — - 796 796
Trade receivables JFE U BR 3K — 17,500 — 17,500
Financial assets included in SFATENMZIE - 3518
prepayments, deposits Ko A g IR IR 2
and other receivables TREE — 4,102 - 4,102
Equity investments at fair BRATEEYERE
value through profit or loss BaRRERE 2
RERE 1,911 - - 1,911
Due from Directors FEWES 2 R1B — 856 — 856
Pledged deposits BEHEBER - 156 - 156
Cash and cash equivalents HENEEEED — 81,771 — 81,771
1,911 104,385 796 107,092
Financial liabilities Financial
o= = liabilities at fair
value through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
BAFEE amortised
FIERR cost
BBz B B BR Total
cREE Ze@AE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET FExT
Trade payables FERHBREK - 2,838 2,838
Financial liabilities included in SFAEMEMNIE B
other payables, deposits WET & RFEETRIA 2
received and accruals TREE - 12,765 12,765
Finance lease payables FE B FEFR E R IB - 327 327
Convertible bonds Al R 1E 5 - 36,000 36,000
Derivative component of AMRES2ITETER
convertible bonds =B 3,792 — 3,792
3,792 51,930 55,722
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 # & —EZEhF=A=+—HIFZ

33. Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 33. REREs 2RI A @)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REER  SEcMITAZERBENT : (&)

instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows: (continued)

2008 Group
—EENF B
Financial assets Financial
TRMEE assets at fair
value through
profit or loss Available-
AT EE for-sale
HIBR & Loans and financial
EiEEER receivables assets
BRIE BBk At & Total
TRIEE & W I8 E/EE BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET THT FET FHT
Available-for-sale investments A ¢t H E 5 & — — 786 786
Trade receivables EUBR ZX — 42,361 — 42,361
Financial assets included in SFATENMZIE - 3518
prepayments, deposits Ko A g IR IR 2
and other receivables EREE — 3,626 — 3,626
Equity investments at fair BRATEEYERE
value through profit or loss BaRRERE 2
RERE 3,162 — — 3,162
Due from Directors FEWES 2 R1B — 142 — 142
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRESZEY — 33,202 — 33,202
3,162 79,331 786 83,279
Financial liabilities Financial
SREE liabilities at fair
value through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
BATER amortised
I B8R & cost
EEmER birg: s
BRIEZ AR 51 BR Total
ol =K il =K T
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
&t F&T F& T
Trade payables FE ST BRX — 2,840 2,840
Financial liabilities included in STAEMEMARIE B
other payables, deposits Wel€ REGTRIEZ
received and accruals E@MAasE — 5,039 5,039
Convertible bonds ] P & = — 36,000 36,000
Derivative component of AMBRESCITETA
convertible bonds 5 8,619 — 8,619
8,619 43,879 52,498

118 PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2009



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

33. Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows: (continued)

33. REHED 2RI A (#)

REER -

EHeRIAZEEENAT : (&)

Company PN
Financial assets 2009 2008
SREE —EEAF —EENF
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
BERR Bk
e W R E A&
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Due from subsidiaries FEWNB AT 2 RIA 30,602 25,082
Financial assets included in FEATER BRI K H i
prepayments and other receivables WHRBzmERE 141 407
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEED 11 8,243
30,754 33,732
Financial liabilities 2009
=MAMR —zEnE
Financial
liabilities at fair
value through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
BATEE amortised
S iR &% cost
HEERER RE
BEEZ R 251 Bk Total
tREE Z2RAE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FExT FExT
Financial liabilities included in T AFEST FRIB K B b fE
accruals and other payables NpEzEmaE = 2,961 2,961
Convertible bonds A RES - 36,000 36,000
Derivative component of AR ESFZITE
convertible bonds T AREZD 3,792 — 3,792
3,792 38,961 42,753
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33.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows: (continued)

REER -

33 ZERESZEMTA @)

EHeRIAZEEENAT : (&)

Company (continued) AT (&)
Financial liabilities (continued) 2008
CRAE(E) ZETNF
Financial
liabilities at fair
value through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
EAFEE amortised
I HR K& cost
R R
BRIE 2 AR BR Total
THEE ZemBE @t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT THT T3
Financial liabilities included in T AFEST IR K& E fh fE
accruals and other payables NZBEZEHmEBE — 1,420 1,420
Convertible bonds R ES — 36,000 36,000
Derivative component of AIMRES 2 OTE
convertible bonds TAED 8,619 — 8,619
8,619 37,420 46,039
34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 4 BHHEEBREEEERBKE

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise convertible
bonds and cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities, such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s financial instruments are short term in nature. The
carrying amounts of these financial instruments reported on the
balance sheet approximate to their fair values, and hence there is no
interest rate risk exposure in relation to these instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 34 HREREEEEREE @)
(continued)
Foreign currency risk S EE 3 B
As most of the Group’s trading transactions, monetary assets and KEBARIHLEERS EBEEREBED
liabilities are denominated in RMB and HK$, the impact of foreign RARBERBITRAFTEEAMN - B INEE R
exchange exposure to the Group was minimal and there was no BERSAEBEMEBRZEZEEM  HEEE
significant adverse effect on normal operations. The Group does not use BNEBEATNANEE AEETEUTES
derivative financial instruments to protect against the volatility associated MTEH T BEBZINELXSZRNEME R
with foreign currency transactions and other financial assets and BERAGERNSEZES AEBE KO K
liabilities created in the ordinary course of business. The majority of the BEEMINARARE - WIAARBSE -
Group’s operating assets are located in Mainland China and are
denominated in RMB.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance sheet TRITREFREEMISREZHEFTIIENS
date to a reasonably possible change in the RMB exchange rate, AT REBZANMERNEFB 2 ERZHAR
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s net profit and MERT e HIRABEEH o BRE (HREK
the Group’s equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary BERBENATEEED) -
assets and liabilities).
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)in (decrease)in
(decrease) in the Group’s the Group’s
RMB rate net profit equity
ARBER AEEZ AEEZ
L@ #RgMm  EZREMS
(~#) (R 2) (R 2)
% HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
2009 —EENE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens AT ARERE
against RMB 5% 1,859 1,859
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens W& T AREHE
against RMB (5%) (1,859) (1,859)
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in (decrease) in
(decrease) in the Group’s the Group’s
RMB rate net profit equity
AN R = rEEZ rEEZ
E#RBS AN NS
(F3) CRL2) CRL)
% HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
2008 —EENF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens WA T ARERZE
against RMB 5% 2,849 2,849
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens WS T AREHAE
against RMB (5%) (2,849) (2,849)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy customers.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets,
other receivables and amounts due from Directors, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables is disclosed in note 18 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet all
contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The Group’s
objective is to maintain a prudent financial policy, to monitor liquidity
ratios against risk limits and to maintain a contingency plan for
funding to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its
liquidity requirements.

The Group finances its operations and investment activities by
internally generated cash flows and the proceeds from the
Convertible Bonds, respectively.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2009

34.

BEREEREREE @

FERE

AEEERMBZREERFNEPETRS °
BRERAEENBER  EAFBAEERNE
TRHNEFHAKBREEZERFF ° I
AEBTHEERBERBELSR MAKE
ZIEREBRILTEAX e

AEEEMEREENEERREERE R
ReEEY BERER  RAFEEIK
REBREREEZRERE THLOESH
BE HMERFEARBREEZREA A
HHBROELENEERR  LREFRZE
TEZREE -

FRASERRKERELZEERR Z#
— S EERRPHRERM EI8HKE -

REBESER

mBECRBRERENSESAERNAEE
HMZanPBAEZRR AEEZBEER
REREZEHER  EEARRBERR
PESLEX YREBSETE  BER
CSEEERARCUABRBNERDERTE -

AEBAORNEBABEEZR SR KA #H
BRESHERE REEBRKREEDRM

B o



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) &1 78 3% 3% Kff 3% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2009 &2 —EZNF=A=1+—HILFZ

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 34 HREREEEEREE @)

(continued)

REBE SRR (H)

REER  AEBRBEOARUBANKAE
ZEMABZHBBERNAT

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the balance
sheet date, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, was

as follows:
Group &
On demand
or less than
12 months
RER
HFHLH  1to5years Total
+=@A —ZHEF &gt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FExT FExT
2009 —EThF
Trade payables P& BR X 2,838 — 2,838
Other payables, deposits HMEMNFKE B
received and accruals FE e 12,765 = 12,765
Finance lease payables FE A B 75 0 & RRIA 159 212 371
Convertible bonds AR ES 36,000 — 36,000
51,762 212 51,974
On demand
or less than
12 months
&K
SR A 1to 5 years Total
+=MEA —ERF et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT T3
2008 —ETN\F
Trade payables FE S BR 3X 2,840 — 2,840
Other payables, deposits HMEMNRKE B
received and accruals 7] & R ERH TR 5.039 _ 5,039
Convertible bonds AR ES 36,000 = 36,000
43,879 — 43,879
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) B 7% ¥R & Mt 5 (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 ##EZ —EZENF=F=+—HIFFE

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 34 HREREEEEREE @)
(continued)
Capital management EARER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEEEAERZTEZEMNABRASEE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to HELENBERSRIT 2ERNLE LT HE
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and EXLEERSREEE -
maximise shareholders’ value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments REBEEBHERNERBURBELER R Z
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk K H A ﬁﬁé?ﬂh BT EH FAE o K
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the SEAINBBAEHRRERE ZKE - WK
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment BB ENFBITHRART N FAEERLGE
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. B ALEEBABTEMIRERNRTE - &
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital E_ETNF=ZA=+—"BER-_ZETNE=
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or A=+—RHIEFE BEXEBEZEE - BX
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March SRR EEE -
2009 and 31 March 2008.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total REBHBEEABLREREERNBENR -
borrowings divided by total equity. The gearing ratios as at the ﬁ%g B RIREE! @g@p@ﬁé,@ B o
balance sheet dates were as follows: REERAZEEBBLERET
Group A&
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EEANF Z—ZZTTNF
FHET FAT
Convertible bonds including the MR ES - BRETE
derivative component THEHS 39,792 44,619
Finance lease payables J& <1 B 75 10 & kI8 327 —
Total borrowings fEE#RE 40,119 44,619
Total equity RS AA %R 59,736 37 35
Gearing ratio BEAGBLR 67% 120%
35. Approval of the Financial Statements 35. MBHmRZ&E
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by MBWRER_ZTNFAAA-+T_HEES

the Board of Directors on 22 June 2009.
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